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Management Discussion and Analysis

kkﬁEFEMEJrZE ﬂ?

MARKET REVIEW

Year 2020 was challenging disorderly for the world, with the
COVID-19 pandemic and the related containment measure took a
drastic toll across businesses. Almost no industry was unaffected by
the pandemic. For the year ended 31 December 2020 under review,
the continuous upgrade of the highly infectious pandemic has led
to a 'home-based’ economy with substantial travel restrictions and
lockdowns across the PRC, and many countries have drastically
reduced or even closed air travel with the PRC, particularly delivered
a hard hit to the hotel sector, some of our hotels in the PRC which
have witnessed significantly lowered occupancies in the first quarter
of 2020 amid the lockdowns imposed by the government of the PRC.
In addition to the United States (the “US"”)-the People’'s Republic of
China (the “PRC") trade & political tensions and the demonstrations
on Hong Kong anti-extradition bill protests, together with the
pandemic of COVID-19 meant a triple blow to Hong Kong and the

PRC's economy.

Despite signs of global slowdown, with a challenging operating
environment as the COVID-19 pandemic and the pressures posed by
the US trade negotiation, the PRC has adopted hardcore prevention
measures with a series of positive fiscal policies to contain the
pandemic spread and to strengthen counter-cyclical adjustment.
Judging from that, the execution of these policies went well and
the PRC still managed a growth in 2020. The PRC's gross domestic
product (“GDP") increased by 2.3% in 2020, reflecting a decrease
of about 3.7% as compared to 2019, the lowest figure since records
began in 1992. Even during the global financial crisis in 2009,
the PRC’s quarterly GDP growth did not dip below 6.4%. In the
meanwhile, Hong Kong’s economic performance had been shrunk
severely, struggling under the prolonged pandemic situation with the
labour market conditions deteriorated, which was led to the steep
crash in visitors arrivals from Mainland China. Major exhibitions,
conferences and events have been cancelled or postponed, heaping
further pressure pushed Hong Kong to a technical recession. Hong

Kong’s GDP dropped by 6.1% year-over-year in real terms in 2020,
after contracted 1.2% in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Starting from 2019, tourist arrivals to Hong Kong plunged over
50% in its sharpest decline since 2003 SARS crisis. In 2020, total
visitors arrivals to Hong Kong amounted to approximately 3.6 million,
representing an decrease of 93.6% year-on-year, after dropping by
14.2% in 2019, which accounting for 75.8% of the total were visitors
from Mainland China, and those visitors from Mainland China also
dropped by 93.8% year-on-year, after deceasing by 14.2% in 2019.
Visitors from the traditional short haul markets (excluding Mainland
China) dropped by 93.7% year-on-year in 2020. Of the total visitors’
arrivals, overnight visitors accounted for approximately 1.4 million,
which was a decrease of 94.3% when compared on a year-on-year
basis. According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the average hotel
room occupancy level for all the surveyed hotels under different
categories in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2020
decreased from approximately 79.1% to 46.1%, recorded a significant
occupancy loss. Compared to occupancy, the overall room rate
dropped by approximately 26.5% yearly in 2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s business and
financial performance had been significantly and adversely by the
pandemic of COVID-19 with the travel restrictions, revenue of the
Group attained HK$67.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing a decrease of 52.0% as compared to HK$140.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was a loss of HK$83.4
million (Year ended 31 December 2019: loss of HK$110.9 million)
which was mainly attributable to gross profit of HK$11.3 million
(Year ended 31 December 2019: gross profit of HK$62.0 million) and
other income and gains of HK$12.3 million (Year ended 31 December
2019: HK$2.6 million), gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$55.7
million (Year ended 31 December 2019: Nil) and income tax credit of
HK$9,000 (Year ended 31 December 2019: income tax expense of
HK$1.4 million) offset by administrative and other operating expenses
of HK$78.5 million (Year ended 31 December 2019: HK$94.1
million) i selling and distribution expenses of HK$0.3 million (Year
ended 31 December 2019: HK$1.0 million) ; finance costs of HK$1.8
million (Year ended 31 December 2019: HK$0.2 million) : impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment of HK$29.0 million (Year ended
31 December 2019: HK$7.4 million); loss on fair value changes of
investment properties of HK$37.3 million (Year ended 31 December
2019: HK$37.7 million) and loss from discontinued operation of
HK$15.9 million (Year ended 31 December 2019: HK$33.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E IR 2 AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The

performance of the Group’s hotel operations and securities

trading during the year ended 31 December 2020 under review, the

commentary on the hotel sector and the changes in general market

conditions and the potential impact on their operating performance

and future prospects are contained in the succeeding sections headed

"Business Review” and "“Prospects”.

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a)

(b)

Hotel Operations

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the continuing hotel
operations mainly comprises the operations of two “Rosedale”
branded 4-star rated hotels located in Guangzhou and Shenyang.
Overall revenue generated from hotel investment decreased by
52.0% to HK$67.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Year ended 31 December 2019: HK$140.0 million). To combat
the competitive environment, the Group will continue to invest
resources to enhancing its market network and positioning and,
in the meantime, will further streamline its business operations to

contain costs efficiently.

Securities Trading

The segment recorded a loss of HK$0.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 (Year ended 31 December 2019: segment
loss of HK$2.9 million), mainly representing the fair value loss
of investments held for trading, as a result of mark to market

valuations as at the balance sheet date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 23 November 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Subsidiary”) and an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a disposal agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”), in relation to the possible disposal of 60% equity
interests in Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Company Limited (the “Target
Company”), a limited liability company established in the PRC and
owned as to 60% by the Subsidiary, and its subsidiary (together as the
"Disposal Group”) at a consideration of Renminbi (“"RMB"”) 61 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$68.5 million) (the “Consideration”).
The Purchaser paid the Subsidiary RMB21 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$23.9 million) upon both parties signed the Disposal
Agreement. On 22 May 2019, the Purchaser and the Subsidiary
entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the long stop
date to 10 months from the date of the Disposal Agreement, with
all terms and conditions remain unchanged. Further details were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 26 November
2018, 17 December 2018, 31 December 2018, 18 January 2019, 4
February 2019, 8 March 2019, 4 April 2019, 26 April 2019, 24 May
2019, 21 June 2019, 19 July 2019, 23 August 2019, 20 September
2019, 25 September 2019, 25 October 2019 and 4 November 2019.
The Disposal Agreement was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 10 December 2019

and it was completed on 26 February 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E IR 2 AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
and investments held for trading amounted to HK$1,813.5
million (31 December 2019: HK$1,816.3 million). The Group has
an interest-bearing borrowing amounted to HK$22.0 million (31
December 2019: Nil).

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2020 were HK$1,853.4 million and HK$82.3 million (31 December
2019: HK$1,924.2 million and HK$171.1 million), respectively. As a
result, the current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
22.5 (31 December 2019: 11.2). The gearing ratio as at 31 December
2020, expressed as a percentage of total borrowing to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was 1% (31 December 2019:

Nil).

As at each of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, over 95%
of the Group’s cash and bank balances and investments held for
trading were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States

dollar.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the interest-bearing borrowing was secured

by the Group’s interests over certain subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each

of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not entered
into any hedging arrangements. However, the Group will actively
consider the use of relevant financial instruments to manage currency

exchange risks in line with our business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not subject
to the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will
continue to monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the
application of relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated

with interest rates.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2020, the Group had 479 employees of which 416
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration
packages were determined in accordance with individual’'s
responsibility, competence and skills, qualifications, experience and
performance as well as market pay-level. Staff benefits include training
programs, provident fund scheme, medical insurance and other

competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives and rewards to employees, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme for the eligible participants (including

employees).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS

After an extremely difficult year in 2020, the business environment
continues to be highly challenging as we head into 2021 amid
uncertain pace of vaccinations for COVID-19. Given the international
travel is particularly vulnerable under the pandemic, a poor outlook
for the hotel and tourism sectors is still to be expected. For now, the
PRC has avoided new bigger waves of infection that delayed progress
elsewhere and has pushed ahead in economic recovery, driven by
rising domestic demand. Other than the impacts of the pandemic, it
is important to note that the tension between the U.S. and the PRC

remains intense.

COVID-19 is a major humanitarian challenge, that has led the travel
and tourism sectors almost came to a halt. New procedures, standards
and processes, either temporary or long term have been newly set,
which has led to a generational shift in the way the world operates.
At the same time, the hotel sector is moving forward towards a ‘new
normal’, with unprecedented health and safety measures in place.
Thus, we have begun consolidating internal operational efficiency in
response to change in the markets. Our central mission is restoring
consumers’ confidence, which must be to give every guest of our
hotels the confidence and reassurance that they are safe when they

stay with us.

Following the expiration of the lease of Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong
and the disposal of Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel, there remains two
hotels under the management of the Group. As the path of the
pandemic remains highly uncertain, the revenue of the Group will
continue to be impacted during a period when the Group is taking
strict precautionary measures to ensure the health and safety of its
employees, and supporting the steps taken by the government to
control the further spread of COVID-19. Although the COVID-19
vaccination is in place all around the developed nations, the
management of the Company does not expect a recovery of the
hospitality market in the forthcoming year. Beside seeking further high
quality hotel investment opportunities, the Group shall commence to
involve in the property development and investment market in the
Guangdong Province in particular the Greater Bay Area. The Group
see this business segment shall benefit the Company and to generate

a better return for the Company and our shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Chung Sun, aged 58, has been the Chairman of the
Company since October 2020. Mr. Tam owns a number of companies
in Mainland China and has over 30 years of experience in real estate
development, hotel operations and development of large-scale
commercial projects. He also has extensive management experience
in various types of business activities in Mainland China, including
trading, finance and catering. Mr. Tam graduated from the Program of
Doctor in Management Philosophy at the Department of Philosophy,
Sun Yat-sen University, Guangzhou in 2011. In July 2011, Mr. Tam was
awarded the Chief Executive’'s Commendation for Community Service
by the then Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in recognition of Mr. Tam’s meritorious community service,
particularly his contribution in striving for the rights of Hong Kong

owners of mainland properties.

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 57, has been the managing director of the
Company since May 2019. He is also the chairman of the corporate
governance committee of the Company, a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than 30
years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance in international
accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Lai holds a master degree
in business administration. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lai was previously the group financial controller of the Company
and worked for the Company from March 1998 to April 2015. Mr. Lai
had also been an executive director and the chief executive officer of
Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited (now known as SMI
Culture & Travel Group Holdings Limited (in liquidation)), the issued
shares of which are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, since June 2012 and was re-designated as a
non-executive director in August 2013 and up to November 2013.
Prior to rejoining the Company, Mr. Lai was a director of various

subsidiaries of a Hong Kong listed company.
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Directors’ Profile

EEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Liu Hao, aged 31, has been an executive director of the Company
since August 2020. He holds a bachelor of science degree in Hotel
Management from Institute for Tourism Studies, Macau and a master
degree in International Hotel Management from Blue Mountains
International Hotel Management School at Torrens University,
Australia. Mr. Liu has seven years of experience in the hospitality
industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu worked in several
hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in Australia and

Macau.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 72, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since December 2002. He is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company,
and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the corporate governance committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok
was a marketing manager in an international company engaging in
the design of business administration system. He has over 37 years’
experience in the insurance and investment business, principally in
the senior managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok
was an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group
Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”),
until he resigned on 22 February 2021. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited (in liquidation),
the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the main board

of Stock Exchange, until he resigned on 10 December 2020.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 59, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since March 2007. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company, and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon
graduated from the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master
of Science degree in Business Administration. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the CPA Australia. Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director
of Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). He has also been an independent non-executive
director of Media Asia Group Holdings Limited since 24 April 2020,
the issued shares of which are listed on the growth enterprise market
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Poon was an independent non-executive
director of Master Glory Group Limited (in liquidation), the issued
shares of which had been formerly listed on the main board of Stock

Exchange, until he resigned on 9 December 2020.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2008. He is also a member
of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of a Singapore company engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products in Asian countries.
He obtained a diploma in Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of Singapore Institute of Directors. Mr. Sin has over 24 years’
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries
and in the banking field. He is an independent director of China
Enterprises Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
issued shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace
in the United States of America. Mr. Sin was an independent
non-executive director of Master Glory Group Limited (in liquidation),
the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, until he resigned on 9
December 2020.
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Senior Management’s Profile
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Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 49, has been the financial controller of the
Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive accounting
experience through management roles for a variety of public and
private multinational corporations. Mr. Lau is a member of CPA
Australia and a certificate holder of American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 53, has been the company secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom. She has extensive experience in

company secretarial practice.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

BARAEE RF9% B-_T—AFNA
BEERARZHMEHBE  WAKARZME
MEARIZEE - BRZETENDR KA
BEBRAREAEREASBRULER20FE
stk - 2k ERRNGHMAGEERE
BAMEstmipeg s EBEREA -

BEBuLT BF3m B _TZNFNA
REEARRZABWE BEXLTREER
AMELAERUBEFHFLAGAEATESE -

ERARMEEBHELELR -



Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
("Company”) is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
practices which are crucial to the development of the Company and
can safeguard the interests of its shareholders (“Shareholders”).
The board of directors of the Company (“Board” and “Directors”
respectively) has adopted various policies and procedures to ensure
compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the Board, the Company had complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year"”),
except for code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, C.1.2. E.1.2 with considered

reason(s) explained below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

During the Year, the Company was principally engaged in the sector
of hotel investment in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"). The Company’s corporate objective is to create and
enhance value for Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective,
the business strategies of the Company are to maintain the long
term growth and the profitability of the Company. Coupled with
the government of the PRC unveiling the development plan for
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA) being
highlighted in its 13th Five Year Plan, the Directors see that our main
operations continue to stay within the core engine of the development
in the region. The Company is committed to maintaining a solid and
healthy financial status with a solid cash balance and an efficient
debt/equity ratio that will enable the Company to finance the existing

operations and proceed with potential investments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors including three executive
Directors (“Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”) whose biographical details are set out in the

“Directors’ Profile” on pages 9 to 11 of this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to Shareholders and responsible
for the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”), including formulating strategies, establishing
strategic directions, overseeing the Group’s businesses and systems
of risk management and internal controls, monitoring operating and
financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive
Directors led by the Managing Director. Daily operations and

administration are delegated to the management.

In addition, the Board has established the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s

affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group, and review and approve the
Group’s annual and interim results, and other matters which need to
be dealt with. Additional Board meetings will be held as and when
required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by all Directors in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws").

During the Year, eleven (11) full Board meetings (including four
regular Board meetings) were held and four sets of resolution(s) in

writing of all Directors were passed.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the

Board and the annual general meeting of the Company held during

the Year is set out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TRERME

EES @
SEEGRENAEENETNLBESE
SRR AATIREAFEAG Y HEERMT :

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held
HEBITEERE
Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Directors BE EEgER RREFKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman) R L E (£/E) 11 N/A
(appointed with effect from 19 October 2020) (B -—ZFE-—ZFF+H+NHAE TiEMA
BEZAE)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director) FEFELRE (EFHLTE) 11/11 11
Mr. Liu Hao s A 4/4 N/A
(appointed with effect from 24 August 2020) (B—ZFE-—ZFF/\A-+MHFE i A
EZT)
Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman) ®xgEt (£/E) 6/6 0/1
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2020) (B =-—ZF-ZFF)NA+HEFT)
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic BREAE 717 171
(resigned with effect from 25 August 2020) (B=—E-FF/\A=-+HHHE
BFIE)
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEERL L HE 717 0/1
(resigned with effect from 25 August 2020) (B=—F-—ZFFN\A=-+HHE
FEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EIEE 11/11 0/1
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B B S A 11/11 11
Mr. Sin Chi Fai REBLAE 11/11 0/1
REBBE HEZERERAF
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations) between

each other.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers

of the Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer”
but instead the duties of chief executive officer are performed by the
managing director. For the period from 1 January 2020 to 6 August
2020, Dr. Yap, Allan (resigned with effect from 7 August 2020) was
the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”). Upon the resignation of
Dr. Yap, the position of Chairman was vacant until the appointment
of Mr. Tam Chung Sun as the Chairman with effect from 19 October
2020. The managing director of the Company (“Managing Director"”)
is Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, and
the formulation of strategies and policies of the Group while the
Managing Director is responsible for the management of the business
of the Group, and the implementation of major strategies. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director is

clearly established and set out in writing.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (CONTINUED)

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. The former
Chairman, Dr. Yap, Allan, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2020 (“2020 AGM") as he
had another business engagement. Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, the Managing
Director, attended and took the chair of the 2020 AGM in accordance
with Bye-Law 68 of the Bye-Laws and answered questions from

Shareholders.

Mr. Tam Chung Sun, the Chairman, had held a meeting with the
INEDs without the presence of the Executive Directors during the Year

according to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS" TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the
corporate governance and the latest developments of the Listing Rules,

and materials relevant to the Company’s business for their reading.

From time to time, the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) circulates details of training courses which may be of
interests to the Directors. The Directors are encouraged to attend
the relevant training courses and seminars organised by professional

bodies at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, the current
Directors (namely, Mr. Tam Chung Sun, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, Mr. Liu Hao,
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Sin Chi
Fai) participated in continuous professional development during the
Year by reading materials provided by the Company. Mr. Liu Hao and
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert had also attended seminar(s) organised

by professional bodies.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current INEDs were not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those prescribed by code provision A.4.1, and does not intend to take

any steps in this regard at the moment.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 30 April 2021, the nomination committee of the Company
held a meeting to assess the independence of INEDs. Taking into
account the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, the nomination committee of the Company considered that all

INEDs remained independent.

MONTHLY UPDATES TO DIRECTORS

Under code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’'s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and

Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Monthly updates of the Company for the period from January to
February 2020 were not provided to the Directors as the Company’s
major hotels, its employees and facilities are located in the PRC which
had been affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 since December 2019.
During the period from January to February 2020, the offices at the
PRC were largely suspended operations. As a result, the Company was
unable to complete the preparation of the Company’s consolidated
accounts, and did not provide monthly performance of the Company

to the Directors.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
TRANSACTIONS

SECURITIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all the Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with

the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship
with the external auditor; (ii) to assist the Board to review the Group's
financial reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function); and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of the external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the financial reporting matters including the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and make

recommendations to the Board,;

(2) approved the engagement letter of external auditor for the year

ended 31 December 2019;

(3) considered and made recommendation to the Board on the

re-appointment of external auditor at the 2020 AGM; and

(4) reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit

Committee held during the Year is as follows:

WEBETANIE:

(1) HZHMBRABEE BEHEZZ—AN
F+ZA=+—"BUEFEZ2E2FEER
HEZZ-_ZFAA=t+HIERMAEAZ
PHIEE WMEERLES

2 #ENIBEHEOBHRE—_FT-NAF+_A
St RALEFEZEBES:

B) ZEMEREFEN_ZFT_TERRE
FREG BRSNS EED ¢ R

(4) WEARKEZ E R E R N AR e I E
A BB

EECZEENERAFERNRITNER
HREET

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Audit Committee EREEERE HiEBITERRE

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert i B S A 3/3

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva ekt 3/3

Mr. Sin Chi Fai AR E 3/3
20 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line

with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely,
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, and one Executive Director, namely,

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to
consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company; (ii) to review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management of the Company; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held four meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the new

Executive Directors;

(2) reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management of the Company for 2020;

(3) reviewed and approved the proposed level of salary increase of
employees, including the senior management of the Company,

for 2021;

(4) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the revised

remuneration of the INEDs; and

(5) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the

remuneration of the INEDs for 2021.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Remuneration Committee passed one set of resolutions
in writing during the Year regarding the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Managing Director and the senior management of the

Company for 2019.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Remuneration Committee held during the Year is set out below:

FMEEE )

AN N EEeRNAFEERNBB T E=
HR#H BRERNALAEZEERALEBNSRE

AR — NEBEIEA -

EY¥MEEEXRER
HREET

REERBITNE R

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Remuneration Committee FMEEERE HiEBITERRE
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PRI EE 4/4
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EE Bk 4/4
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah FEFESLLE 4/4

Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and

responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions.

During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in

note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the

Year is within the following bands:

BEEZHMORERESANRARBZBER
BRIMRMETE -

RAFERN HEEES2H
-

REEARANZ

EENTEFEZHEHBARLFEREES M

TEHRRMIFE12 ©

SREEANERAEEZHMEATBER :

Number of Senior

Management

BREEAEHE

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T 1= 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T %2 1,500,000% 7T 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG

Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely,
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (chairman of the Nomination Committee),

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the
Board at least annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as
defined below) and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the corporate strategy of the Company;
(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board having due regard to the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) to assess
the independence of INEDs; (iv) to review regularly the time required
from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;
and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
(vi) to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives, if any, that the Board has set for achieving
diversity on the Board, as well as assess the progress on achieving the
objectives; and (vii) to review the Board Nomination Policy (as defined

below), as appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held four meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1)

assessed the independence of INEDs;

considered and made recommendations to the Board on the

re-appointment of retiring Directors at the 2020 AGM,;

reviewed the nominations of Directors and recommended their

appointments to the Board for approval;

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in light

of the Board Diversity Policy; and

reviewed the time required from a Director to perform his

responsibilities to the Company.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the

Nomination Committee held during the Year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Nomination Committee REZEEGHRE HiEBITERRE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B 5 A 4/4
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva ekt 4/4
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah FFELEE 4/4
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognises the importance of diversity in relation to its
business, and has adopted the Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to guide the Board in achieving its diversity in terms of
gender, age, educational background, skills, knowledge, professional
experience and length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness

of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the

Board Diversity Policy when recommending candidates to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits

of diversity each candidate can bring to the overall Board composition.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of

diversity, including but not limited to, those described above.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness, and recommend any required

revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and taken into account
the existing composition of the Board and the business nature of the
Group, the Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Board
has not set any measurable objectives for implementing the Board

Diversity Policy.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates

for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship or for

proposed re-appointment of a Director:
(@) integrity;

(b) qualifications including skills, knowledge and professional
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and

corporate strategy;

(0 commitment to devote sufficient time in carrying out duties as

a director of the Company;

(d) Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted

by the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;

(e) for a proposed appointment of an INED, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the

independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the

number of years he/she has already served; and
(9) potential/actual conflict of interest that may create.
These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The

Nomination Committee may consider such other factors that may

enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of a new Director made by any Board members and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the nomination criteria set out above and
make recommendation for the Board’'s consideration and approval.
The Board will decide the appointment based on the recommendation

of the Nomination Committee.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall service to the Company of the retiring Director
who wishes to stand for re-election at the general meeting, including
the attendance of Board and Board committee meetings, and the level
of participation and performance on the Board during his/her term.
The Nomination Committee will also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the nomination criteria set
out above. The Nomination Committee will make recommendation
to the Board and the Board will then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the

general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference

in line with the CG Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee).

SEEARE

BEEIRIBE

REZEGEWITMETERRMRELR
ETHEENERREEANBEEN (R
AR & BREBEEXHENERZEEFN
BRREAN WIFHHEBRBRAHRESEE
BRitfk BEFSRRBREEZESENES

RERBELE -

HREMZTRTEZME  REZEERE
MERRBRRAG LERECNREESY
ARRINERRY  BRESERESEZE
CEZWHEBR  UAREREPAEES
EN2ERERRE -RAZBET SR
RAERTEERGHRENE LXAEHMNE
HRE -REZBERANETSRLES
MEFEERBREENBRRAGLEESE
ERRERRLEEE -

TEREREES
AARERUGCEEAEER (DEEAE
g TERBLZEATATHLETH

i

&

W
o

TCRERZECHAMBBIUNFNTES
BRI AERERELE AR —BRTES
BFERE(CXERZBEIE)EMX -

REBBRENEZERERL T
20205 3R

vy



28

Corporate Governance Report
.I/J:\%kk #ﬁ =

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (conTINUED)

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two

meetings and had performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(2) reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and for the six months ended 30
June 2020 and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report

and the interim report; and

(3) reviewed the training and continuous professional development

of Directors.
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A~ =Fa-a )
ﬂtgﬁ ﬁr:
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (contnuep)  (REERZEE (@)
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the & EEARLZESKENAFERNERITHE
Corporate Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows: BLHEBRAT
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Members of Corporate Governance Committee TH¥EAREZEERE HEBITEBRE
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BFELRE 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B B A 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva PEILEE 2/2
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT FEREX
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial EZEHHHEBRERRZEME
Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated EHEEBERELSVKHMHZGEUBHRE

financial statements for each financial period which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows for such financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
and made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial

statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

The fee payable for audit services provided by TANDEM (HK) CPA
Limited (“TANDEM"), the auditor of the Company, was approximately
HK$2,100,000 (2019: Nil). On the other hand, the fee paid for audit
services provided by Moore Stephens CPA Limited, the ex-auditor of

the Company, was approximately HK$2,950,000 during 2019.

The statement of TANDEM regarding its reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 53 to page 65.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the
Group, setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company, the main features including the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budgets as well.
The process includes identification, evaluation, management measures
and control and review. Meetings are held regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems, to
identify any significant management and operational risks as well as

control failings or weaknesses.

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control
audit function to an independent accounting firm covering the review
of key internal controls in selected areas based on key operational,
financial and compliance risks as identified under the risk management
framework and as advised by the Audit Committee and the
management. The independent accounting firm is staffed with persons
with relevant qualifications and experience. They reported directly and
primarily to the Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring
and managing the risks and internal controls of the Group. They
also planned their internal audit schedules in consultation with, but
independently of the management. The Audit Committee reviewed
the activities of the independent accounting firm on a regular basis,
including the overseeing and monitoring of the implementation
improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal controls

within the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in
internal controls and recommendations for areas of improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee. Following the receipt
of such recommendations, the Company has fully implemented
the recommendations to further strengthen the risk management
framework and internal control system during 2020. The Audit
Committee was satisfied that there were no significant control failings,
weaknesses or significant areas of concern identified during the Year
which might affect Shareholders. It concluded that an adequate
and effective internal control system is maintained to safeguard the

Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the internal control audit function and the Audit
Committee considers that the internal control audit function is

adequately resourced.

Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provision (as defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with no fixed dividend
payouts. The actual dividend that the Board may recommend or
declare in respect of any particular financial year or period is subject

to a number of factors and at the discretion of the Board.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Board will take into account the following factors when

considering the payment of dividends:
(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity

and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by

the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’'s expected working capital requirements and future

expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and
(g) any other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restrictions under

Bermuda laws and the Bye-Laws.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company. During
the Year, the Company Secretary had complied with the relevant

professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out formal channels of communication with

Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’'s

website at www.gbadynamic.com.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively
communicate with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the

opportunity of asking questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and

on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external
auditor are available at the annual general meetings of the Company

to answer Shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders may at
any time send enquiry(ies) to the Board in writing by mail to the head
office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Room 3401, 34th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary or

by email to info@gbadynamic.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
registered Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders in accordance with the requirements set out in the

Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws.

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as

requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half (50%) of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in

which meetings are to be convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either (i) any number of registered Shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting of the Company to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not
less than one hundred (100) of such Shareholders, can submit a

requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal
for election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is

intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may
consist of one or several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of
the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of resolution or not less than one week
before the general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided
that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange
with the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual

general meeting or circulating the statement for the general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or the statement will not be circulated for the general

meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company’s website at www.gbadynamic.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’'s Memorandum of

Association and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2020 ("Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operations and
trading of securities. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37 to the consolidation

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages

66 and 67 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (“Board”) has resolved not to recommend a

final dividend for the Year (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group’s business that have occurred since the end of
the financial year 2020 and a discussion on future development in
the Group's business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 2 to 8 respectively of this annual report. Also,
details of financial risks are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The aforesaid discussions form part of this report

of the Directors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages from time to
time. The Group achieves this through rational resources utilisation
and compliance with applicable environmental laws and practices of
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions
and employment. The Group continues to improve the environmental
performance as an integral and fundamental part of the business

strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing

Limited and the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated
and provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence
of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group’s business where the Group is

operating.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its key stakeholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain

good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on

page 199 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds

for believing that:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2020

were approximately HK$1,570.8 million (2019: HK$1,603.3 million).

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are

set out on page 200 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 19 October 2020)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah (Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Hao

(appointed with effect from 24 August 2020)
Dr. Yap, Allan (Chairman)

(resigned with effect from 7 August 2020)
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic

(resigned with effect from 25 August 2020)
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny

(resigned with effect from 25 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws”) and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and
Mr. Sin Chi Fai shall retire from office by rotation at the 2021 annual

general meeting of the Company (“2021 AGM") and, being eligible,

have offered themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Tam Chung
Sun, who was appointed by the Board as the chairman and an
executive Director with effect from 19 October 2020 and Mr. Liu Hao,
who was appointed by the Board as an executive Director with effect
from 24 August 2020, shall hold office until the 2021 AGM and,

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2021
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duty of their respective offices or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and
officers liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group

during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option scheme
("Scheme”) which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition
to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early

termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption
of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit
so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by Shareholders.
Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
not yet exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of

the Company from time to time.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
options available for granting by the Company under the Scheme was
78,921,104, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on that date.

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Report of the Directors

EFEEWE

Bt S

KARRZZE—=ZFRA=Z+TBERMHT —&
B E ([5HE)) R _Z—=F
NAZB GrElz&E& —AGEEK 2B H)

B TFABRE_Z_=F AR
HEARBDERRAG LREFTGFRER L
RS o

RABET 8 R AR AL H b BB RT 81 7] 7
RO ZBRERTERMET IRMNES
SHRBNTERMNEBERRREEITRN
210%(F%’+%‘J?§%[§E§EJ) CBRIEARRRER
PR R BR R & L HEAE B R AT B RR AR
MR E R 2 EBIIRERB I SEBRRL
ERFEBRRBEETRMN210% - BE
& - RIBEET S R AR R B E AR H A 3 A R
BB M A RITEZ G BREETERA
FTROARAZEERMNEE - THEBBA
RETE D EITRD Z30% °

RZZE—+tFNA-—ARITZARARER
AIRE - REHEFHTERERSE - R
RNEFAE  RAARRBEZE T HEHH
BE AR HE 42 20 578,921,1048% » 15 A 2 & A 5%
HEE #ITRHOMI10% °

1§

RIBF S RARBEMBRE SR TE
M2EE 7 RRERDEBRNEER @R

BH(EEZA) EOEFR+TZEABRER -
EHTHEEBARARFEBEITRMN Z21% ° fi
R EE EARE B - AIMAEEST £

MRAZIRE -

/% DDQ’%Z EH?IHXE&E/Z}—J

20205 3R

43



Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in 12-month

period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the

Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of each grant in excess of

HK$5 million;

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case

will not be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of

grant, which must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of

grant.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRESE @
Details of the movements of the share options under the Scheme — MARFERN > ZTEIE FHNERE 2 S8 F
during the Year were as follows: BT -
Number of share options
B4R
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December Date of price
Eligible participant 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2020 Grant per share Exercise period
HKS
R-B-%F R-2-%F
\ A-B  RAEER  RRTER  RARER toAIi-f 5B )
RERSEE HATR Rt i HEE/&H WA R RiLEH {T%E ki)
R
Directors
gz
Dr. Yap, Allan
(resigned with effect from
7 August 2020) 7,800,000 - - (7,800,000) - 24.4.2017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
£t ‘
(B-F-Z4/| ft HEF)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.42017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
PEUEE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 500,000 - - - 500000 2442017 0590 244.2017-234.2002
FEREE
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 500,000 - - - 500,000 24.42017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
HEBRE
Employee(s) 500,000 - - - 500000 2442017 0590 24.42017-234.2002
BT
Other eligible participants 46,000,000 - - (14,000,000 32,000,000 24.42017 0.590 24.4.2017-23.4.2022
HtRERgEE
Total 55,800,000 - - (21,800,000) 34,000,000
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
UNDERLYING SHARES AND

IN SHARES,

DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
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RAEQXTARODEEBERD Z2HFR

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Capacity/Nature of Number of underlying of the

Name of Director interest Shares held shares held Total Company

(Note 1) (Note 2)

EARREE

54/ Fr i R A2 Fris B R 2 BITREZ

BEEEB EEME 2B #E ok BRBEDL

(Bi#t1) (Hit2)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah Beneficial owner 147,663,250 - 147,663,250 18.71%
FETFERE EnBEAA

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
BEILESE ERBEEA

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
R o A EnBAA

Mr. Sin Chi Fai Beneficial owner - 500,000 500,000 0.06%
EEERE ERBEEA

Notes: WEr

1. All Directors’ interests in the underlying shares of the Company were
in respect of the share options granted by the Company on 24 April
2017. Details of the share options are set out under the section

headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

2. Based on 789,211,046 issued shares of the Company as at 31

December 2020.

1. MABEEERARFMEMROAES 2 ER
HARERARZB—LFONAZTHER
hZ BEhE - ARBEREFBEEN LI
Brtgat &) —#6 -

2. REARRQ

ARZE=_EF+=-A=+—H

ZBETIRMDEE 789,211,046/ 515 -

MEBE N EERERAR
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during
the Year or existed at the end of the Year except for the share options

as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any transactions,
which constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES

During the Year, none of the Directors is considered to have interests
in business which compete or are likely to compete, directly or

indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EETHE
FTERERAMALRRH R
B 5 2 M ROA A

RZZE-ZHF+-_A=+—H BEBEHFK
HEGOIE336GATHRF LB LML -
EFZUIALTRARRIR D KA 2 #
sRORBRIT

Long positions in the shares of the Company RAERBRBZH R
Approximate
percentage
Capacity/ of the issued
Nature Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes of interest shares held the Company
&t/ BADRB BT
REEMH M EEME FEROGEE RAZBAEIL
China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") 1 Interest of controlled 48,660,424 6.17%
corporation
REEEER
Cosmos Regent Ltd. 1 Beneficial owner 43,325,554 5.49%
EREFA
Note: B

(1) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the
Company through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Cosmos Regent Ltd. and Million Good Limited, which held
43,325,554 shares of the Company and 5,334,870 shares of the
Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.

(1) CELZBER2EMN E A FCosmos Regent
Ltd. & Million Good Limited (% Bl # &
43,325,554 M AR F D 5,334,870
BARBKRSD) 2ESMBEREES
48,660,424 " A Bl J {5 2 RS o

BREXHEEN R_B_FF+_H
=t+—B ARRLEEBEAEMBALR
RARBO KA T A EEIORR R
BRBRBEESFRBEGRIIFEIBCKRAETER
ZELMA -

REEBEHBERERAT
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2020

interim report are as follows:

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Mr. Poon resigned as an independent non-executive director of Master
Glory Group Limited (in liquidation) with effect from 9 December
2020, the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the main

board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Kwok resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Master Glory Group Limited (in liquidation) with effect from 10
December 2020, the issued shares of which had been formerly listed

on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok also resigned as an independent non-executive director
of ITC Properties Group Limited with effect from 22 February 2021,
the issued shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai

Mr. Sin resigned as an independent non-executive director of Master
Glory Group Limited (in liquidation) with effect from 9 December
2020, the issued shares of which had been formerly listed on the main

board of the Stock Exchange.

The updated biographical details of the Directors are set out in the

Directors’ Profile on pages 9 to 11 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s provident fund schemes are set out in note

30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the applicable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of

the total value of the Group’s purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of

this annual report.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the Year (2019:
HK$11,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 37 of this annual

report.
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AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore Stephens”), which was the
auditor of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 2
March 2021. TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited (“TANDEM") was appointed
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 2 March 2021 to fill
the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Moore Stephens and
to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

TANDEM will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment
at the 2021 AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the Audit
Committee’s recommendation, a resolution for the re-appointment
of TANDEM as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2021
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

TAM CHUNG SUN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 April 2021

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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TAN DEM TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited
BR(EBENITEEFERAT

To the Shareholders of
GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GREATER
BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 66 to 198, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the "“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

B A AR &

TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited
BR(BR)GHMEBAERAF

6th Floor, No. 80 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB BT E L T:8805%618

T: +852 26259218 | F: +852 2392 5253
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Opening balances and corresponding figures of
Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel Company Limited (/%% %
K EAXEEERA ) (“Luoyang Golden Gulf”) and its
subsidiary (together the “Disposal Group”)

As disclosed in notes 10 and 31(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group disposed of the Disposal Group on 26 February
2020 (the “Disposal Date”) with a gain on disposal of HK$44,912,000
recognised in the profit or loss in the current year. We were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
concerning those opening balances of the Disposal Group as at 31

December 2019.

As the opening balances of the Disposal Group significantly affected
the determination of the Group’s performance, we were unable to
determine whether adjustments to the Group's loss for the year ended
31 December 2020, the opening accumulated losses of the Group, the
opening balances of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale, the
non-controlling interests and translation reserve attributable to the

Disposal Group as at 31 December 2019 might be necessary.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Qualified Opinion (CONTINUED)

The balance of assets and liabilities that were classified as held
for sale, the non-controlling interests and the translation reserve
attributable to the Disposal Group as at 31 December 2019 and the
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the Disposal Group

are as follows:

18 M A% B R

REER2EE B

RZB-AFTZA=+—BHEARFED
EZEEREBE HEKERGZIFERE
BRERFREBZERUREEERBE_F
—NAFETZA=1T-BUEFEZIEENT

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment I - MBS AR 45,328
Inventories TE 650
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth fE IR BR 5K 2,906
Bank balance and cash WITHEBRRE 1,026
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERR (36,191)
Tax payables FERT 18 (130)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEEE (732)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R A 16,678
Translation reserve PR (17,806)
Loss for the year KFEEEE 585
Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign BRENEEBEEZERZS
operation 619
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEEHAZ LR 1,204

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3
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As we are the incoming auditor of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, we were unable
to obtain certain books and records and be provided with sufficient
and appropriate documents of the Disposal Group to carry out audit
procedures that we could satisfy ourselves that the carrying amounts
in respect of the assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group, the
non-controlling interests and the translation reserve attributable to
the Disposal Group at the Disposal Date, the gain on disposal of
HK$44,912,000 recognised in the Group’s profit or loss in the current
year, and Group's income and expenses, other comprehensive expense
and cash flows movement for the period from 1 January 2020 to
the Disposal Date in relation to the Disposal Group were free from

material misstatements.

Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial statements is
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the current
year's figures and the corresponding figures. Any adjustments found to
be necessary to these amounts might affect the Group’s consolidated
financial performance, changes in equity, movement in consolidated
cash flows and the related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Annual Report 2020
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BB EFBEEBRBERMOBEHLE - R A
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated — ¥ AHI4GAMEBRANEAZAEENEE -
financial statements of the current period. These matters were GEULEBEEAERMBAFERGEAVBRRL
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial HEAZEREF#EITEEN - AT HELSE

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we  HEREHEBENER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

RRETER

Impairment assessment of hotel properties

JBIEYEZ BEEE

We identified the impairment assessment of the Group’s
hotel properties, which are included in property, plant
and equipment (note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements) as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the balance of hotel properties to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, together with the judgements
involved in estimating their recoverable amounts.

B BEEEBEEDEGEADE EBENRE G
B mERMEE16)) < ME AR RREBETEE K
AREENER L #AHRUREVBBRREBZEEL - N
FEEDBEYE Z AW E S 5B S Nz HE o

The Group's hotel properties are located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Group incurred
segment loss of HK$74,420,000 from continuing hotel
operations during the year ended 31 December 2020.
An impairment loss in respect of hotel properties of
HK$27,542,000 was recognised in the profit or loss during
the year. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values of
the hotel properties amounted to HK$201,802,000.

EREBEEMECNPEARILMBE (THE]D - MR
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HIFE  E£EEHE
& TS B £ ) BDET1874,420,0008 7T - AFERIBE
B JE ¥ 2 W ROR (B B 1827,542,0008 T - RZ T T F
TZA=1+—R  BEEYERZREER201,802,0008 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERNBF N AHRARERAERETERE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on

the recoverable amounts of hotel properties included:

BN E R EEEEYEATROSRFH2IEFEE

a) understanding management’s process for estimating
the cash flow projections and financial budgets;

BREBEGMTRERERARNBREL R

b) evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the

Valuer's scope of work;

AHEEERMZ A % - EREFEIMIARGERN TR

= 7!“/\@
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B A2 A

Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAREITER

Impairment assessment of hotel properties (CONTINUED)
B JE YR Z 6 E A ()

Management reviewed the recoverable amount of each
hotel property at the end of the reporting period by
estimating the value-in-use of these hotel properties
with assistance of an independent qualified valuer (the
“Valuer”) not connected with the Group to determine
the amount of impairment required to write down
these hotel properties to their recoverable amounts.
The value-in-use of the hotel properties are dependent
on certain key inputs including gross profit margin,
future revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates and
discount rates of the hotel properties.

EREERSRBEMENRERERS 2 KOS -
DERER BEEEVEBEZEIAEBRMGEM ([
BB T B USEENEZEREE UEE
WU EEEYEMRZEAT RS EMTZRESE B
EMEZEREBEIORNE THRRBARE  8FEE
MEZENE - RRRABRE - HEIERERPFIREK o
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BERETEE®)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBS N AHRAREA S RETER

Q

d)

evaluating the historical accuracy of the management’s
assessment of the cash flow projections by comparing
the historical estimates to actual performance in
current year; and
HEEREREHRS RSB ET G ZEREE - 7
EREBEMTEAFEZERRBELR &

evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology, the discount rates and terminal growth
rates applied and the reasonableness of the gross
profit margin and future revenue growth rates with
reference to the historical financial data, financial
budgets and available industry and market data.
2EREMBEIE - MIBRFRE RAI5T % R 5EIET
HATAGKETE MREREREREZEFEN - £7
ERARBAERERZ GBI -



Key audit matter

RAEETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYRZI1G1E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
together with the judgements involved in determining
the fair value.
BAEREVEZHEZNRERBGEFE  REARKRE
MELERBGEMBRREBZEET - NMLEFRE
MEZ RXFEED DR FIE -

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use located in the PRC. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying value of the Group's
investment properties amounted to HK$55,000,000 and
a decrease in fair value of HK$37,342,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income during the year.

EEEZREMEE —BUNTBEEBEREZEEZKE
ER-R-ZE-_THF+_A=+—H  EBEEEREDZ*
Z AR E /55,000,000 7T - REAMGFEERMEME
a5 P B R A FEER 437,342,000/ 7T ©

B A AR &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNET N AEERETSRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the evaluation of the

appropriateness of the valuation of investment properties

included:

HFERFHEREMEREZSEEZEFEE

a)

b)

evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity
of the Valuer as well as the appropriateness of the

Valuer's scope of work;

AHEEEMZT & KREEBEARGER TESRE

= T/\m

reviewing the valuation report issued by the Valuer
and understanding from management and the Valuer
the valuation basis, methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;

ERAEMAEH AERTLAMERERGEM T
PR EERE - FTA A EARFTER 2 HEREE
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Key Audit Matters (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BEEITER

Valuation of investment properties (CONTINUED)
REYEZ (418 (&)

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuation performed by the Valuer using
income capitalisation approach.
EEEREMEHRBMEEMEARAERNOEET 2
BEfMRATFEESIR -

Details of the valuation techniques and significant
inputs used in the valuation are disclosed in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuation of
investment properties are dependent on certain inputs,
including market rent and capitalisation rate.
ERMRGEEMAZ T 2RABEZFERES W BHR
RUTEE18KER - REMEZ HMEBANE THARRE - &
FEhBHE REREE -
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AREETEE®
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNET N AEERETSRETRE

Q

d)

evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data
including the term rent, market rent and capitalisation
rate used by the Valuer; and
RS B Y - BEMGERPRER 2 HEHE
© MBEHEERERMEE &

performing market research and analysis to assess
whether the changes in fair value of investment
properties that resulted from the valuation was
reasonable.

ETHBARARDNAFGEEEEZRENERFE

EEDREAE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. As described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above,
we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence in relation to
the disposal of the Disposal Group for the year ended 31 December

2020. Accordingly, we were unable to conclude whether or not the

other information is materially misstated with respect to such matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Lam Kin Hang.

TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 April 2021

Practising Certificate Number: P07531
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—z-%F —Ehf
s FHR Fib
(&%)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
Revenue WA 5 67,156 139,949
Cost of sales $H & A (55,823) (77,992)
Gross profit EF 11,333 61,957
Other income, gains and losses, net HEaWA - s & EEFE 7 12,336 2,590
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A A 2 s 55,685 =
Impairment loss on property, plant and W HBEREEZ
equipment VERIEY | 16 (28,992) (7,356)
Loss on fair value changes of investment REMEQNTEEES
properties # & 18 18 (37.342) (37,743)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HFAX (284) (972)
Administrative and other operating TTH R H M AR & B 2
expenses (78,521) (94,099)
Finance costs B & A A 8 (1,762) (150)
Loss before tax B Bt A 85 18 (67,547) (75,773)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEHiEe,/ (FAx) 9 9 (1,398)
Loss for the year from continuing BREKEXKZ
operations AEEERE 11 (67,538) (77,171)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEREEK S
operation rEEEE 10 (15,892) (33,725)
Loss for the year AEEEIE (83,430) (110,896)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ZAFEEHMEHEUE
for the year (BAx)
Items that may be reclassified B & r[pE EF M E 1R 7 A
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREEZ
translation of foreign operations N =5 16,455 (12,118)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit RHEEMNEB AR R EHH 1
or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries EEHCIERERE (19,153) —
Other comprehensive expense for the year AFEHMEMEHZ (2,698) (12,118)
Total comprehensive expense for the AEELHBAXERE
year (86,128) (123,014)

Annual Report 2020



Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Loss for the year from the
continuing operations
Loss for the year from the
discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests
Loss for the year from the
continuing operations
Loss for the year from the
discontinued operation

Total comprehensive expense for the
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share (HK$) from continuing
and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

Loss per share (HKS$) from
continuing operations
Basic and diluted

|=|\/

realEmik
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

A\

Notes

B &E

HTIHALTEGEEEFE:

KABHEAR A
BECEELKZ
KREEEE
BRIFEEEKZ
KEEEE

JERERR R
FEREXRBZ
AEEER
ERILERERBEZ
REFBE

HIIIATEERFERZR
P :
RRBHEEA
FEIE AR

BECEEBRCRILEE
(¥R CEBRERGERT)
EARKREHE 15

BESRERIBRER
(®&T)

AR #E 15

Hfv 2w Wm &

7?f§$+fﬂ:+*5¢¢E

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)

—E-EHF —ZT-NF
FHERT FHET
(&%)

(57,440) (65,285)
(14,208) (30,150)
(71,648) (95,435)
(10,098) (11,886)
(1,684) (3,575)
(11,782) (15,461)
(83,430) (110,896)
(70,738) (106,287)
(15,390) (16,727)
(86,128) (123,014)
(0.09) (0.12)
(0.07) (0.08)

20205 3R
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At 31 December 2020 R - T - =&

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Investments held for trading
Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowing
Tax payables

Lease liabilities

Contract liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

Annual Report 2020

FRBEE
M e hRiE
EREEE
REME

RBEE

e

B 5 & H Al e W AR R
FIEEBEZRE
RITEBRRAS

¥

DERFELEERE

REBEE
B 5 K EH A B R
AEEE
JE& A R
HERE
BHEE

HEAOBRFFLERE

BRAMNAE

RBEEFE

EERERRBAR

FRBEE
EXEHBARR
HE&RE

BEEFE

Notes

B &x

16
17
18

19
20
21
22

23
24

25
26

27
25

2020
HK$'000
—g-2f
FHR

211,996
2,609
55,000

269,605

908
36,088
116
1,813,337

1,850,449
2,951

1,853,400

36,911
22,000
18,113
1,863
2,030

80,917

1,376

82,293

1,771,107

2,040,712

24,033
871

24,904

2,015,808

2019
HK$'000
—E-NF
FHT

253,961
33,746
90,000

377,707

1,488
56,500
189
1,816,076

1,874,253
49,910

1,924,163

81,875

9,859
40,462
1,883

134,079

37,053
171,132
1,753,031

2,130,738

30,055
2,691

32,746

2,097,992



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR wR

At 31 December 2020 R—E-FF+-_H=+—H

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-ZF —T-hF
Bt 5 FER FHET
Capital and reserves R R #E

Share capital &% < 28 7,892 7,892
Reserves & s 1,825,112 1,915,580

Equity attributable to owners RAFER AEGER
of the Company 1,833,004 1,923,472
Non-controlling interests IR ER 182,804 174,520
TOTAL EQUITY EHARE 2,015,808 2,097,992

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 198 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

April 2021 and signed on its behalf by

TAM CHUNG SUN LAI TSZ WAH
Executive Director Executive Director

BN FEOEI1EZIRAUBHRRER S
——FHA=t+HEESS A RTETE
WA T ESREKES

mEL BTE
HITEE HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRERZ R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

—T-F

— = —=

FH-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATEAAELR
Share-based Non-
Share Share Special  Translation ~ payments Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
B KOEE  RAURE Eifie ARAZEGE  HbkE  2HER Rit  FERER At
AT TR TiEn Thn Thn Thn TR TiEn T Thn
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(P3H(a)) (Bt (o))
At 1 January 2019 R-E-nE-F-H 7892 1360752 658,303 76,812 13,715 (703190 (22,827) 2,024328 190,603 2,214,931
Adjustments upon adoption ~ ERREEHFHS
of HKFRS16 RHIZ16% 2 0% - - - - - - 54 5,431 644 6,075
At 1 January 2019 (restated) ~ M=B-A%F-A-A
(f8E5) 7892 1,360,752 658303 76,812 13,715 (703190 (17.39) 2,029.759 191,247 2,221,006
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (95435 (95435)  (15461)  (110,8%)
Other comprehensive REREMZERAR
expense for the year
- exchange differences —REBNEBREE
arising on translation LEREE
of foreign operations - - - (10,852) - - - (10,852) (1,266)  (12,118)
Total comprehensive FERERARY
expense for the year a8 - - - (10852 - - (95435 (106,287)  (16,727) (123,014)
Lapse of share options BRERN - - - - 0 - 2,107 - - -
Reduction in share HIRRAEE
premium (note () (H3x(0) - (1360752) 1,360,752 - - = = = = -
At 31 December 2019 RZB-n§
t=B=1-H 7,892 - 2,019,055 65,960 11,608 (70,319) (110,724) 1,923.472 174,520 2,097,992
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%£-5-A 7892 - 2,019,055 65,960 11,608 (70319) (110,724) 1,923.472 174,520 2,097,992
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (71648)  (71648)  (11782)  (83430)
Other comprehensive income/ ~ AEEE (12 EUE/
(expense) for the year (B2
-exchange differences arsing ~~ —RE BN ERBEE
on translation of foreign LEHES
operations - - - 12,402 - - - 12,402 4,053 16,455
- exchange differences —NHENBARR
reclassified to profit o loss ENARERRL
upon disposal of subsidiaries EREE - - - (1149) - - - (1149)  (1.661)  (19,153)
Total comprehensive income/ ~ AEE2EME/
(expense) for the year (Rx)eg - - - 910 - - (71,648)  (70,738)  (15390) (86,128
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - - (a570) - 4,570 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - - - BE B
Dividends recognised as AEAEZRE
distribution (note 14) (Bz14) - - - - - - (19730)  (19.730) - (19730)
At 31 December 2020 33
TZA=1-H 7,892 - 2,019,055 66,870 7,038 (70319) (197,532) 1,833,004 182,804 2,015,808

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e RREEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

(a)

Special reserve represents the contributed surplus of the Company
arising from: (i) the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in prior years; (ii) reduction in share capital during
prior years; and (iii) reduction in share premium in December 2019.
The reserve is available for distribution under The Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Acquisition of additional interest in an entity that is already controlled
by the Group is accounted for as equity transaction. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interests and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid that are recognised directly in
equity.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 10 December 2019, the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
as at 11 December 2019 was reduced to nil and the credit arising
therefrom was transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

GEX

(a)

BREEREETAUNTSBEZARAZE
BAEN: (VERATFEETEBEHARET
I REMT AR R 2 EEE AW EMETT
AARIRGDzEERZZE (IR BESF
BHETZBRAER k(iR —NLF
+Z REIRIR G &S E - BEANRERRE
—AN—FRFAETADIE °

AEBREMERAEECDRNSEFHEZE
BIBIMEREUNRARS AR - AEHE
B RIS REESFHAE
ARBEBARZKE AR EEER 2 &
B HipEEEIFEREE 2 AR SRE
HEEREERRZENREQXITEERZ
R -

BEER-Z—NFE+-_ATHBIHA
ARIBRRFF RS FRBHNERIRESE
ARABRZZE—NF+A+—BZKR®H
HEFENERLQBERLET  AEELD
ERBEERETSANG ZEHBHRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —ZT —F

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year from continuing operations

Loss for the year from discontinued operation

Adjustments for:
Income tax (credit)/expense
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest income
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss
— property, plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets
— other receivables
Write-off of trade receivables
Loss on fair value changes of
investments held for trading
Loss on fair value changes of
investment properties

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in investment held for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
PRC income tax paid
PRC income tax refund

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Payment for rental deposits
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries, net of
cash and cash equivalents disposed of

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Annual Report 2020
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Note

B &E

31

2020
HK$°000

—g=%%
TR

(67,538)
(15,892)

(83,430)
(9)
29,260
31,180
(20,133)
2,952

15
(55,685)

28,992

10,500

73

37,342

(18,943)
584

(18,759)

(16,224)
147

(53,195)
(82)
70

(53,207)

20,133

117
(213)

51,037

71,074

2019
HK$'000
(Restated)
—T-NF
FHET
(&%)

(77,171)
(33,725)

(110,896)
1,398
29,820
39,506
(8,621)
3,449

29

7,356
9,200

934
3,089

37,743

13,007
22

203

3,790
(14,878)
(1,392)

752
(4,281)
(3,529)

7,623
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-%5 —T—n%F
FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest-bearing borrowing raised FESRAEEE 22,000 -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ENARREEARE (19,730) =
Repayments of lease liabilities EEREERE (20,689) (37,464)
Interest paid 2R F A (1,398) (3,449)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBAZRSFE (19,817) (40,913)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RekBREeEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZRDFE (1,950) (37,302)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FMRELELZEEEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,816,076 1,859,960
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes EREH) 2 & 684 (5,556)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRESRESEHEER
END OF THE YEAR 1,814,810 1,817,102
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: REeRESEEBERADN:
Bank balances and cash RITEHB LIRS 1,813,337 1,816,076
Bank balances classified as held for sale DEAEBELE ZRITEH 1,473 1,026
1,814,810 1,817,102
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GENERAL INFORMATION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
(the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its issued shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the businesses of hotel
operations and trading of securities. The details of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) which functional currency is Renminbi
(“RMB"), the functional currency of the Company and its other
subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ and rounded to the

nearest thousands unless otherwise indicated.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FEHAE B BREEAN(FH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS R EER ) 2125
("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily MRANFEERGE/R 2B BT
effective for the current year LA B 2 1EET
In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to REFERAEEBLNERREESE
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards MAae ((EEetmAe]) E8he &%
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong B iR A CE Rl o HE LR 7 B2 2 5 AT DA
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the Ry EBHMBRELED Z1EE] - B
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period BIIMEREEMBHmAMmMs A -
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the —EF—- A —H\ BN FEEEE
consolidated financial statements: ARy
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material BEESHERBIHY BAZES
and HKAS 8 BB GHAERE8R

ZAERT
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business BB R E R HIK T TFEE

FEIRZAEFT
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform E A IER S A FREEWE

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 LY Bk

BRTERF395%

Ko 278 B 7 i 5 22 A

IR ZAEFT
The application of the Amendments to References to the AN 5 e F &5 B 7K 37 & 2E Rl 4 1F
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments 28 > 18t 2K ET DA K S B 7 3R &5 2 B
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the ZEFTHAEERAEERBAEE 2
Group's financial positions and performance for the current and AR R KRR R SR ARG E B BR
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated RIS ZEEREETEEASE -

financial statements.

EBERE NSERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as a

whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together

significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine

whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is available on

transaction-by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should

the Group make any acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Amendments to HKFRS 16~ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
Beyond 30 June 2021¢

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

e update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010);

e add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has

assumed in a business combination; and

e add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business

combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to business
combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 relate to
the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements and disclosure
requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and
hedge accounting.

e Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities A practical expedient is introduced
for modifications required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted for by updating
the effective interest rate. All other modifications are
accounted for using the current HKFRSs requirements. A
similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting
applying HKFRS 16;

e Hedge accounting requirements Under the amendments,
hedge accounting is not discontinued solely because of
the interest rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships
(and related documentation) are required to be amended
to reflect modifications to the hedged item, hedging
instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging relationships
should meet all qualifying criteria to apply hedge
accounting, including effectiveness requirements; and

e Disclosures The amendments require disclosures in order
to allow users to understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform to which
the Group is exposed to and how the entity manages those
risks as well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark rates, and
how the entity is managing this transition.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (CONTINUED)

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has an interest-bearing borrowing with fixed interest

rate which may be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.

The Group expects there will not be significant gains or losses on
the Group’s financial liabilities from the reform on application of

the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as

current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the

amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the

liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does

not test compliance until a later date; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (CONTINUED)

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the

corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, and the related terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant lenders, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification

of the Group's liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. MEMBHRRCFEREER
FTREEFTEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31 REMBHBRRZEREE

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and investments held for trading that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or

value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (CONTINUED)

For investments held for trading and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique
that unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value
in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B ﬁ“%&%‘z MEEER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESITBEX @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 T ERFHBE
Basis of consolidation e HEE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the SERERRBEARAATRAR
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled FiEd v ERLENE QR 2B

by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interest entitling their holders to a proportionate

share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZA8 W BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 TESTTHE &)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group) and
its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the

date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant

subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set

out in respective sections.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete

satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes

the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group

has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

FREVMBERRZ2EHREER
FESITBEX @

3.2 FEETEHE

AEBERTHREQEER (F3tit)
HEREA - IR EROETHERM
EmaRB 2 EHBIBRER
;S

BHOEEEBAINE RIRSE (K
—HERARE) H— RN AERAME
(Rl &9 18 5l & aa 3 AR 7%

& AT R — AR - BIEH
EREREES  mBRARZ2ERT
B 1718 B8 B 40 B 1E 1) E i BE
RERR -

e REAZEEAR EFRAE
B8 3 7 FA 745 4 B 7B 4 42
B2

s AEEMBHELEREN—
HEE MaxBEENAE
BREAOREEPES X

s AEEBEHEHNYXLRELZEAD
SEEERAZMNEE " B
AEBHESETKEDN
NREB AR HITRER o

BRI WAREFPEBERNE MK
B 75 22 1 A 1O By ) A SR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. MEMBBRRZEREER
FEESTHE @)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEGFHBE®)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays), the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance

obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the goods or services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's

performance in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the

Group has the right to invoice.

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it

would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the

customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZA8 W BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and

conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.
The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the

definition of investment property as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZA8 W BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)

Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEMBBRRZEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESTTEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 32 FEEFHEREX®
Leases (CONTINUED) HE (8
The Group as a lessor FEBERLHBA

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised

as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3. MEMBHRRCFEREER
FEETTER®

B

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 EESHEE®)
Foreign currencies Y-
In preparing the financial statements of each individual NG EESEE K I ESNE = =
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the WERF - MRS EKHZEE 2
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) Mg BB TR (HNE) - AlIRR 5
/He

are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation

attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period which they are incurred as the Group does not have

any qualified assets.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the

conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group

recognises as expenses the related costs for which the

grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under “other income, gains and losses,

net”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I

32 EEESTHE W)

g}

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The obligations for contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group had no forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future

years.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group’s entities established in the PRC are
required to participate in defined contribution retirement
plans organised by local governments. Contributions to
these plans are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and
other than these monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to

its employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for wages and salaries accruing to

employees after deducting any amount already paid.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payments reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share

options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payments reserve will be transferred to

accumulated losses.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

3.

u/j—\

ﬁ%ﬁ%zf@%ﬁ&

E;qanJHBZ (#8)

3.2 T ESFHEE®)
KR
UBRABEEZ UBRATKL S

1R B R R R BB 2 2 A A
T3 2 DB A B2 AR K
REATARER A M2 AT E
BEHE -

TR DA B A 46 B A B 42 2 A9 SRR 3
HERBEZAFEELEZE
PR JETH 5 5 B 5 1) R R A
REAESEHERK SRR 2K
RITRAZMBANERESH  #
=T AR EIE o0 (AR R o
RERERERE - NEEREBEY
FrEMRREIETSE R BRI MG
BN ERB 2R ATAH
B2 bEt8F - BRI REMBEFT BT
(mB) zZEENBETHER - U
ERAFAXRBREETHa - AR
RRFEETSELAEAE - 3R
REERNKRBE cBREMS -
ERHEREZAFEENER
BEE I o

HBREEITER - RERURR

REEAERIRERBRER
iR fE - 2 RBARAER 5B A R

SRR E I B B ARAIT R - R
T DA B (R 1 R AR 2 SR IR
BRERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. MEMBBRRZEREER
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to

utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax

rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over

time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date

of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes

levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest

in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEMBBRRZEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESTTEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEEFHBR

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued

operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZA8 W BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and Y HEES R R ME XK EH
right-of-use assets (CONTINUED) HEEEZBE (#)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are IR EEEMETRENRE
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and ERRYEER BRSO REEXE
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or K CEXEESIEEHEBRSE
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs EEBEMN BRISEEENEILAE
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can —HOREREZREeELEMZ
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for &/NER - rEEEMB IR EE
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset BB eEESEMARNZT
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the KWeleEeFE T REERAR
relevant CGU or group of CGUs. EXBUNREeELEENLARNZ
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs e B AR FEERDSEX
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the ARFEAEEME Z2E=E o KT
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present HERAEER B RKRERE
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current HABAMRETBEEERE -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3. MEMBBRRZEREER
FEESTHE @)
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

%
A
A

FERBRART SR FERE S
2 BeAE SR « 17 S AR A Ty AR
TOREE - AR BB EEE RS
5T {0 FF 8 1 B 52 BB K R 3
(T FTB AR A o

=@ TA

HMEBERKATAEARNKGXIZ
AT AEREHMEEREREA
B-MAERERIABEEZERE
ERXHAERRKIEER - HE
BAXEBEERARBTSROIX
BRI ZERARNEEZS
MEERS -

TREEREBRABINHRIEAYF
EBEE HEEKETFANZES
ERRERNIREBTEVBRE
ERF1SHAAE - ARBRETS
MEERERAGB(CERBERERRN
FEEAE ((BEABRERAFE
EfE) ZeREELTRAR
BN MBEEREEZRZERART
HEREFTAXNKESREE
FEmaE(ER) 2 AFEE-
A EEBEaRATFEEFTE
ZeREEITRABEMERE
EZRGRAANEERIEE HER

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3

107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #RE] ﬁ%#&%zf«i%i@&

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESITBEX @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 32 FEEFHEREX®
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SR T A (5)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZA8 W BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

3 the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and

collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3

Business Combinations applies.

/T A (%)
EHEE (&)
EHEEZ S BERERE (B)

FAETIMGEHENEREELRIANE
BEMEEKSRAFEEES
Htt2EPmRAFEE]GE

s NUEHEHERKEBAMNESR
MEBEZEBEABAEZER
BE R

BNBRFREEAMELL
REeERnBARAINEAE R
REEREZHE -

=

MEAMEREERERBBEMS
SR AT EEE  BEYS
BRTMEEZH  MAXBEERKR
BREREES  MIEBBUBR
SENFIRLXAHIMERZ
EEA KRBT ERNIARE
AEBEA A HELEENEME
2 ZERRENERAF
EEZS-

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer

credit-impaired.
The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables and bank balances.
(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the
“other income, gains and losses, net” line item.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVTPL

included investments held for trading.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The

assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is

based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices

for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low
risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. All financial
assets, except for trade and other receivables, are

determined to have low credit risk.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic

information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e Nature of financial instruments;

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to

share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment

is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised

cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount

and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.%Aﬁ%ﬁ%2F@%$&

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESITBEX @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 XESFHEHE®)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LHT A (E)
Financial liabilities and equity THEERKRE
Classification as debt or equity B EF R
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial BEHEEBRANTAEZRENLTHEZA
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance AAkeREERRAIAZE

of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and interest-bearing borrowing are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity (CONTINUED)
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

1 22 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

MEMBEHRRZEREER

HEREI TR (&)

3.2 T ESFHEE®)
TE T A (%)
SHEBRKRE (E)

B#EA 1
BMEA+TARAEELMEDNA
e
@ fH—BALTEA N TES

ZBATHETRNBER
SEARRE

0)

(i)

(iii)

HASEAZHERHK
(R 42 1 4

HAEBEEATEN
5,

RAEBERTEEBRR
AETREEABNKE -

i —HEBATE AT &M
HAREAREEAREE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ZEREAEE /R —
SEMKE AR (&R
NE-HEBARRRR
MEBARRILEARE)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties (CONTINUED)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (CONTINUED)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties (CONTINUED)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to Group's executive directors for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various types of services provided and activities carried out

and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for hotel properties

The Group has developed certain criteria in making judgements
whether the hotel properties are qualified and recognised in
property, plant and equipment. The directors of the Company
consider whether the ancillary services are significant in the hotel
operation. Some hotel properties comprises a portion that is held
to earn rental income, and another portion that is held for use
in the operation of hotel business. If the portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services. Judgement is made in an individual
property basis to determine whether the above criteria are

so significant that property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belongs, including allocation
of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of cash generating units,
for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject to
greater uncertainties in the current year due to the uncertainty
on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were HK$211,996,000
and HK$2,609,000 (2019: HK$253,961,000 and HK$33,746,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses of
HK$28,992,000 and nil (2019: HK$7,356,000 and HK$9,200,000)
in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets that have been recognised respectively. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are disclosed in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)
Depreciation of hotel properties

Hotel properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with consideration of the remaining term of
the leases and the remaining years of co-operative period. Their
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s hotel properties. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the rate at which the hotel properties

are depreciated and the carrying amount of the hotel properties.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. The
determination of the fair value involves certain estimation of
market conditions and assumptions of the investment properties
which are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumption in the valuation are reflective of the current market

conditions.

Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of loss reported in

profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment properties is HK$55,000,000 (2019: HK$90,000,000)
after taking into account the loss on fair value changes of

investment properties of HK$37,342,000 (2019: HK$37,743,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$617,382,000 (2019:
HK$565,066,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future, which is a key source
of estimation uncertainty especially in the current year given
the significant uncertainty on the potential disruption of the
Group’s hotel operations due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition takes place.

Impairment of other receivables

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12m
ECL. Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, general conditions, internal credit ratings and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of other receivables was HK$31,625,000 (2019:
HK$30,558,000), after taking into account the impairment losses
of HK$10,500,000 (2019: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE
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5. REVENUE 5.

The Group owns/leases and operates hotels and provides
hotel management and related services. The Group also owns
investment properties for property rental business. Revenue

recognised in the consolidated financial statements during the BHERANER 2 BWALT
year are as follows:
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts REEZEFEHNZWANDSE
with customers
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ZEC-EF —T—NF
. FER FH
Continuing operations SEREEK (1 E5)
Hotel operations B JE T
- Hotel rooms —BEERE 26,884 70,890
- Food & beverage — B 8,622 21,165
Revenue from contract with customers HEEE LA 35,506 92,055
Securities trading BHEE - =
Rental income from leases REHEZHS WA 31,650 47,655
Dividend income Az B A - 239
Total revenue A 67,156 139,949
Revenue from contract with customers by Rih[E 5 E 5 2 B
geographical markets BEAKWA
— the PRC — HFE 35,506 92,055
Timing of recognition of revenue from contract  E2Z 5 & LU A &) HE 2B
with customers
- At a point in time — N2 8,622 21,165
— Over time — BERE 26,884 70,890
35,506 92,055
Discontinued operation (note 10) BRI REER (HEE10)
Hotel operations B JE 275
— Hotel rooms —BERRE 22,110 67,785
- Food & beverage — B8 654 7,642
22,764 75,427
Revenue from contract with customers by BRI E H 2 &
geographical markets BEE WA
- Hong Kong — Bk 22,764 75,427
Timing of recognition of revenue from contract B & # WA K 52 b5 [
with customers
— At a point in time — FAR RS BS 654 7,642
— Over time — BEREE 22,110 67,785
22,764 75,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers consist of

hotel rooms and food and beverage.

The transaction price of hotel rooms and food and beverage is
the amount collected from the customer for such goods and
services. The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the good or service is transferred or rendered to
the customer during their stay at the hotel or when the delivery

is made for food and beverage.

The Group has certain contracts that include multiple goods and
services, such as packages that bundle food and beverage and
other services with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group
allocates revenue to each good or service based upon its relative
standalone selling price. The Group primarily determines the
standalone selling price of hotel rooms and food and beverage
based upon the amount that the Group charges when each is

sold separately in similar circumstances to similar customers.

The Group elects to apply the practical expedient under HKFRS
15 and does not disclose the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining obligations for contracts with an
original expected duration for one year or less or contracts for

hotel operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

ONE)

Leases HE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—e-%% e
Continuing operations BEQSEER FHT FHET
For operating leases: MEEHEEMS ¢
Lease payments that are fixed EEmE K 31,650 47,655

No contingent rental is included in operating lease income.

The Group leases out various offices, warehouses, advertising
spaces, restaurants and retail stores under operating leases. The

leases typically run for an initial period of one to eight years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of the group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided and activities

carried out by the Group’s operating divisions.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8

Operating Segments are as follows:

1) Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food and
beverage services and rental income from rentals of shop
units situated in the hotels of the Group and from rentals of

investment properties; and

2)  Securities trading — trading of equity securities.

6.

MARNBIATES  BEELERKE
TELERRED ZBANRSEER
NRERAZERDETRRAKE

BAREZREELRETZ

MEEAKEENRINERAEE T 23,

DI o

ERTE  AEERBEEYGREE
RIS (48 45 4] 815 2 A= 58
mF -

) BEEKEBEERE  BERRY
WA B 2R B 2 A 7N 5 BB 5 B 7 A
BEUMNEESEAREREMENHE
WA R

2) FBHEE-BRAEHFEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KEDHE &
Segment revenues and results TEWARESE
The following is analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by NTRAEERAREERTRESH
reportable segments: LT
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZEHF+-A=+—HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations Operation
&L
BFEREER LEEH
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading Subtotal operations  Consolidated
BELE BHEE Mt BELE &E
- HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Continuing operations REGEER Tz T TR TR TR
Segment revenue 2 ERA 67,156 - 67,156 22,764 89,920

Segment (loss)/profit excluding depreciation 938 (B518) /% H (R B HEME -
of property, plant and equipment and KERXBEAREREEE
right-of-use assets, impairment loss on & W% BERKERE
property, plant and equipment and loss on 18 URBEEERE 2

fair value changes of investments held for ~ AFEEZHER)

ey

trading (16,243) (11) (16,254) 13,643 (2,611)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BERLENE

equipment (28,803) - (28,803) (142) (28,945)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (382) - (382)  (29.393)  (29,775)
Impairment loss on property, plant and nE - BERABRESRE

equipment (28,992) - (28,992) - (28,992)
Loss on fair value changes of investments ~ #{EEEREATEELHER

held for trading - (73) (73) - (73)
Segment loss PEER (74,420 (84)  (74,504)  (15,892)  (90,39%)
Unallocated income and expenses AAERAREZ
Directors' emoluments i%%i (3,321)
Interest income on bank deposits RTERZFERA 20,133
Loss on fair value changes of investment &ﬁ%% TEEZHER

properties (37,342)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz s 55,685
Central administrative costs and RRITHKARKRDEEERX

unallocated corporate expenses (28,198)
Loss before tax BRERIER (83,439)

34 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

6.

E_FTTF+_A=+—HUILHFE

W AL 2N KB
K=o FE )

TREBARESE (#)

piilil3

BE-Z-NF+-A=+—-HLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations Operation
&L
BFEREER RELH
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading Subtotal operations  Consolidated
BELE EHEE Mt BELE &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT T FEL FAT
Segment revenue kL ON 139,710 239 139,949 75,427 215,376
Segment profit excluding depreciation PEEH (TRENE  BER
of property, plant and equipment and HEAREREEERE
right-of-use assets, impairment loss nE - BERFEIR
on property, plant and equipment and ERREEAERE
right-of-use assets and loss on fair value ARBEEEREL
changes of investments held for trading ATEEEER) 14,796 228 15,024 14,464 29,488
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BERIENE
equipment (29,097) - (29,097) (447) (29,544)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (161) = (161)  (38542)  (38,703)
Impairment loss on property, plant and nE - BERABRESRE
equipment (7,356) - (7,356) - (7,356)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRESEREESE - = - (9,200 (9,200)
Loss on fair value changes of BEEERENTERE
investments held for trading Z2HEE - (3,089) (3,089) = (3,089)
Segment loss PEER (21,818) (2,861)  (24,679) (33,725  (58,404)
Unallocated income and expenses AAILRAREL
Directors' emoluments ESHe (3,548)
Interest income on bank deposits RATFLHERA 7,623
Loss on fair value changes of BREMEATEERZDEHE
investment properties (37,743)
Central administrative costs and RRITHKARKDBEERT
unallocated corporate expenses (17,426)
Loss before tax BERIER (109,498)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (CONTINUED)

The presentation of segment revenues and results for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were restated to conform with
the current year’'s presentation due to the discontinued hotel
operation in Hong Kong. The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of directors’ emoluments, interest income on bank
deposits, loss on fair value changes of investment properties,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and central administrative costs
and unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. BEDHE &
Segment assets and liabilities TEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTRAEERZRARERCEDECE
by reportable and operating segments: EXBED -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—e-%% e
FET FH&T
Segment assets PEEE
Hotel operations B G 240,966 324,399
Securities trading BHEE 123 200
Total segment assets NEEERE 241,089 324,599
Investment properties wEME 55,000 90,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRIR S 1,813,337 1,816,076
Assets classified as held for sale (note 10) D AF(ELE 2 &E&E (H:£10) 2,951 49,910
Other unallocated assets HtAnEEE 10,628 21,285
Consolidated assets REEE 2,123,005 2,301,870
Segment liabilities PEEE
Hotel operations B JE A8 41,675 115,926
Securities trading BHEE - 485
Total segment liabilities DB EARE 41,675 116,411
Tax payables HIEAE 18,113 9,859
Deferred tax liabilities REFIAEEE 24,033 30,055
Interest-bearing borrowing FEEE 22,000 -
Liabilities associated with assets classified DB AFELE 2 B & (HF:E10)
as held for sale (note 10) 1,376 37,053
Other unallocated liabilities HtwARknEaE - 10,500
Consolidated liabilities REAaR 107,197 203,878

REBBRENEZERER QT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KEDTHE
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) PEEERER®W
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSBERBREZHDBEERSE

allocating resources between segments:

FEEEDNGEIRELEDE

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

investment properties, bank balances and cash, assets wEME ROTEBLRES 8
classified as held for sale and other unallocated assets; and REFEFLEZEEREM AR A

BERIN: R

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other s FMBEBHUESIEELENE
than tax payables, deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing J?EHW‘)EEIE REFIBERR  FtEME
borrowing, liabilities associated with assets classified as held CDBERFELEZABEREM
for sale and other unallocated liabilities. RO B BRI o

Other segment information Hismp EER

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
2&LE
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading operations  Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEELE R5EE EESE KRB GE
FHT THT TR FHT FHT
Amounts included in the measure of HESEER 'K’\*Eﬁﬁﬁt
segment loss or segment assets: FTAZHE
Addition to property, plant and equipment  #13 « # 2 R HE N 213 - - - 213
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERREINE
equipment 28,803 - 142 315 29,260
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECHE 382 - 29,393 1,405 31,180
Impairment loss on property, mE BERZEZAEER
plant and equipment 28,992 - - - 28,992
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BRRLEBE
plant and equipment 15 - - - 15
38 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

6. BREDHE®

Rt S BEH ()
BE-Z2-hAF+-A=1t-HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations Operation
B&LE
FEREE L3
Hotel Securities Hotel
operations trading operations Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
BELE EFHEE BELE RAE &8
FEr  Fer  TEr TR AR
(m&31) (=31)
Amounts included in the measure of FTENEEE Y“*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ-ﬁ
segment loss or segment assets: FTAZHIE
Addition to property, plant and equipment ~ #1% + # 28 KRB 476 - - = 476
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BERREEITE
equipment 29,097 - 447 276 29,820
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEEZNE 161 - 38,542 803 39,506
Impairment loss on property, plant and NE BERRBZAESR
equipment 7,356 - - - 7,356
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BRARZELHE
equipment 29 - - - 29
Write-off of trade receivables MEE B RBER 934 = - = 934

RSB ) BERERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the

geographical location of the assets.

6.

R EE 2N KB /=
/%ijé = JJ iﬁi\ (#5)

i 13 & 6}
AEBMEBERTELLETR -
BBRAEEREIBES 2 WA SR

TIEREMIES - ERAKEERD
BEZEMTIREEMEMEMERY

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEFEZBWA IRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ZE_ZF —E-NF bt 33 —T-hF
FHERT FHET FHET F#&T
(5 &%)
Discontinued hotel RIS NiYE
operation - Hong Kong —B5 22,764 75,427 - 33,359
Continuing hotel operations - #3548 4% & )f Jk ¥ 75
The PRC — 67,156 139,710 267,755 344,348
Continuing securities trading HELEEFHFE T XD
operations - Hong Kong — BB - 239 1,850 -
89,920 215,376 269,605 377,707
Information about major customers EBEXEEFZER

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HMWA - W= R EIEFEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

(Restated)

—E-ZF —T-nF

- FER FH

Continuing operations FEREER (1 &E5)
Loss from changes in fair value of BHiRBRERIRAFTEEE
financial assets mandatorily measured LEREEATEESHERE

at FVTPL - held for trading —FHEER (73) (3,089)

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary T E AR 2B - (2,094)

Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 1R F AR (24) (713)

Interest income on bank deposits RITFEFZFEWA 20,133 7,623

Other services income H A AR 5 A 1,000 =

Sundry income ESEY N 1,147 1,826

Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HERRZBZER

plant and equipment (15) (29)

Government grant BT B3R 668 =

Impairment losses on other receivables H th & W BR R 2 R (E B 18 (10,500) =

Write-off of trade receivables i 55 & 5 e UK BR 3k - (934)

12,336 2,590

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$668,000 in respect of COVID-19
related subsidies under the Employment Support Scheme provided

by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

HE_Z-_ZE+_HA=+—HI*F
B - ANEE T E BRI ITERE BT R4
ZARBETETH2019E KRS R AE
74 BY) T HE 7 BT 1 51668,0007E 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. REMA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ZE-ZF —T-hF
- FaR FAT
Continuing operations FEREER (B E5))
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZE 208 150
Interest on interest-bearing borrowing FEEEZFE 1,554 =
1,762 150
9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. FIBH ER), X
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
. —E_ZF —E-hF
Continuing operations HEKEEY i3 TER FHBT
Current tax: BVEARR I8 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REEEH 963 3,504
PRC withholding tax H R TE AR 6,850 -
Under provision in prior years: BEFEREIR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMER 98 179
7,911 3,683
Deferred tax: RAETIA
Current year KEE 27 (7,920) (2,285)
9) 1,398

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a

flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the years

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

PRC withholding tax represents withholding tax on the estimated
capital gain tax arising from the disposal of interest in subsidiaries

set out in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

9.

FREsi R&) X @
RZFE-—NF=ZA=+—B FHBX
FEBRB(CT—LEBRE (B (B
7)) BEOIERY([ZER]) - 5| AR
HFERESNE - ZERR =T —N
F=ZA=-+N\BEEKABERE LR
BHAE - REMBHFEHEGEEZ -
B E R EEE K 52,000,000 7T 6
JE Rt v A 78 128.25% MY B R - M
it 382,000,000 7T K FE 2R Bt i ) # 1%
16.5% M B £ B - TS ™ AR HI F115
T4 SR Il B A 5 1B T RS R R O S AR B
1R16.5% B &% — Bl R BB

RABEERE  BHEMANGEHHE
Pk BHEEMBERRTES
AXEB - BE_Z_TER-_ZT-NF
T R=T—HILFENEBFNERT
RIGETERBR M A 16.5%:TH -

HRAEERBE_T_FTFR_F
—NFEFT A=+ —-HIFEXERE
AEERRBOGEHN - A EELFBE
IR o

BEABEPEMRSHRE (TEEMEB
ED R ERMBBEE M - B

REARBE_Z_TFR-_T—NF
TZA=+—BIEFEZHER25% °

PEEHREEE LGB AR ER (8
RERE M Bk M 5E31(a)) M E £ B {E
SPEAFEHOEMR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

By

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9.

The tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

PR&® (E %), B ()

AEEBEER) / MXATEEAE
m N E A 2 T W as R 2 BR A AT 18 3 AR

other comprehensive income as follows: T
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—g-%% —E-—n%F
FHERT FHT
(& =E51)
Loss before tax % 75t B E5 18 (67,547) (75,773)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BARMABME2%1TE 2
25% (Note) BHIE (ML) (16,887) (18,943)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries E’\EMﬂ%%EM‘ )=
operating in other jurisdictions RElZ TR ENTE 4,097 1,047
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBBEENTAIHNRZFAZZ
for tax purpose M E 3,503 2,324
Tax effect of income not taxable HBBEMBERB WA Z
for tax purpose M2 (18,572) (1,257)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRB BEEBE B E 11,566 8,633
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZAMBERERE Y
differences not recognised Hgge 9,336 9,415
Withholding tax on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz ENR 6,850 -
Underprovision in prior years BETFERESR 98 179
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year REEZEH(ER) FHAX 9 1,398
Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax MizE: FMERAAMBEAAEEEK 2

rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is

substantially based is used.
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TERBHAERDEERZF

PEMFBRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 23 November 2018, Shropshire Property Limited (“Shropshire
Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Luoyang Dinghe Electric Construction Company Limited (/&F5
SMEZEBZAR AT (the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to
which Shropshire Property has conditionally agreed to dispose to
the Purchaser of its entire equity interest in Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel Company Limited (&FF&KEXBIEERAFT) (“Luoyang
Golden Gulf”), a 60% owned subsidiary of Shropshire Property,
and its subsidiary (together as the “Disposal Group”), at a
consideration of RMB61,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$68,500,000). On 22 May 2019, the Purchaser and Shropshire
Property entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
long stop date to 10 months from the date of the Disposal
Agreement, with all terms and conditions remain unchanged.
A deposit of RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,906,000) was received by the Company in November
2018 and included in “trade and other payables” (note 23) as at
31 December 2019.

The major asset of the Disposal Group is Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel situated in Luoyang in the PRC. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the Disposal Group, which was expected to be
sold within twelve months subsequent to the end of reporting
period 31 December 2019, had been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December

2019.

On 26 February 2020, the disposal of the Disposal Group was
completed, details are set out in note 31(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

10.ERLREXY D ERRF

FHE 2L EAR

RZE—NF+—A=+=A ' BEY
EERAB([REWE]  AARZME
E2EWBLR) BRBEMENER
ERAR(EAFDVEEHZ ([H
EHEl) - Bt REVESHIGEH
REMEHEEERNRESKEREE
BERAR(DEBEKE]  —HBRYE
MERBONER ZHBEAR) + RE
MEAR (EIEEEE]) 223
% R{E AR AR61,000,0007T (18E
7 #768,500,000% 7T) - M Z T — N F
FAZ+=A BEHFHERLEWE I —
DR BRETKBHERE D
EHZ RSB TEA  MATEKRRK
BREBIERINE - ARAEIER N
F+— AWERE AKR#21,000,0007T
(8% 7 #923,906,0007% 7T) W 5t AR =
T-NF+-ZA=+—BZI[BHKRHE
b, FE A BR 3 (B 5E23) 19 o

HEEBNTIEEERMNHBEEER
REEKEXEE - BRAR_T-NF
T A=+-"BHREHEREK T @
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ZFRAER FBEERGATEHRE
MaE31(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL 10.ERUIEREER AR
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE EHE2EEAR @
(CONTINUED)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group HEEER_ZE—hF+A=+—8

DERFBHELELERS M BRI RE
TEBRINCETREERAESRMNNT

as at 31 December 2019, which have been classified as held for
sale and presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position, are as follows:

2019

HK$'000

—T-NF

FAT

Property, plant and equipment W - e RERE 45,328
Inventories FE 650
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H fth fE UL AR 5k 2,906
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 1,026
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEZEE 49,910
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE - BR 5K 36,191
Tax payables FERTBEIR 130
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 732

Liabilities directly associated with assets PEARIELEZEENEEZBERAR

classified as held for sale 37,053
Non-controlling interests FEVE R R 16,678
Translation reserve bE 5 15 (17,806)

The results of the Disposal Group for the year ended 31 HEEERE-_"T—NE+-_A=+—H1t

December 2019 are as follows: FEZEEMT
2019
HK$'000
—T-hF
FET
Loss for the year REEEE 585

Exchange difference arising from translation MEBINEBREEZELZR

of foreign operation 619
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEELXERY BT 1,204
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(CONTINUED)

On 1 January 2021, Rosedale Hotel Group Limited (“Rosedale
Hotel Group”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Kocan
Investment Limited (“Kocan”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Rosedale Hotel Group has agreed
to dispose to Kocan of its entire equity interest in Rosedale
Park Limited (“Rosedale Park”), a 100% owned subsidiary of
Rosedale Hotel Group, at a consideration of the aggregate of
HK$1,106,300 and net current asset value of Rosedale Park at

the completion date.

The assets and liabilities attributable to Rosedale Park which are
expected to be sold within twelve months subsequent to the end
of reporting period 31 December 2020, have been classified as
a disposal company held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2020. The net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and

accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

Since the operation of Rosedale Park represents a separate major
geographical area of operations, i.e. hotel operation in Hong
Kong, it is therefore reclassified to discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with

the presentation where applicable.

10.ERLEES

%%‘1//-\*
% fr i > 8 B o

RZTE=_—F—A—A8  KAArMENH
BAFEEAESEAERAR ([HE
B 5 5@ ]) #Kocan Investment Limited
(TKocan ) ST EE sz o Bt - 1A
BEESEERE MKocant & &
HEEESE100%%EA 2B LRQ A
Rosedale Park Limited ([Rosedale Park])
ZEEMBRAED - K{ER1,106,300%
7T KRosedale ParkpA7epk B Bl 2 &
EFE -

BHR-_Z_ZF+_HA=+—HB®
HH A RE + — 8 A A & ZRosedale
ParkEhEERBEE B AIFIELE
ZHEERA AR _ZE_TF+_H
ET—HZREHBRABRKANER S
5l - FEHRH & I8 2 P15 IE 5 A4S i
BEMEERBBEZREFE Bl
BRI ERSE -

7 Rosedale Parkz & @&k —E% 2
ZEZEEME (BB ZBEXER)
AitEmeEa kAt rERGRFE
MOBREBRIELEED HREFTE
HY| - ARFE25FR (MER) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL 10.ERLEREXEK DER
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE KELHE2HEAR
(CONTINUED)

Profit or loss arising from the discontinued RECKRIEREEK ZBER !
operation:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-=% B
FHERT FHET
Revenue WA 22,764 75,427
Direct operating costs HEELEKRAR (42,138) (76,157)
Gross loss Ei8 (19,374) (730)
Other income and losses HiAREE 17,585 1,359
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets CRAEEEREBEREE - (9,200)
Distribution and selling expense DIHRHER X (169) (312)
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 M £ i 4% 4 5 2 (12,744) (21,544)
Finance costs A& KA (1,190) (3,298)
Loss before tax RELAIEE (15,892) (33,725)
Income tax expense FiT 5 % A 2 - =
Loss for the year from discontinued operation 24 IFEELEK 2 NEEEE (15,892) (33,725)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: CRIEREERCHEERE -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-%F B
FHERT FET
Net cash inflows from operating activities KEEH2RERAFE 9,724 15,458
Net cash inflows from investing activities REFE RS RAFRE - 7
Net cash outflows from financing activities BMEEB 2R SR LFRE (13,475) (22,344)
Net cash outflows RendF8E (3.751) (6,879)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL 10.ERIEEEXKE D8 H
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE FEEE2HEAR ®
(CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale PTEABEHEZEERAE
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Rosedale Park Rosedale ParkiA —ZFE — T F + = A
as at 31 December 2020, which have been classified as held for =t HBRARELRENEREME
sale and presented separately in the consolidated statement of MABREPEF I FEEERAE
financial position, are as follows: Rl :
2020
HK$'000
—E-BF
FHET
Inventories TE 80
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b B U BR 5K 1,398
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 1,473
Assets classified as held for sale PEARIELEZEE 2,951
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE - AR 3K 1,319
Contract liabilities aHEE 57
Liabilities directly associated with assets DEARFIELECEENEEEAARE
classified as held for sale 1,376
The disposal was completed subsequent to the end of reporting HEFEHERREHERBRE_T =
period on 1 January 2021. F—F—HEK-

BEBRHERRERAT
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11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operations

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

M. FRERE

FRBREHRGIA) TSR :

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
gy %3 —T-hF
FER FH
(iE7))
Depreciation of property, plant and M MR NERETE
equipment 29,118 29,373
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 1,787 964
Total depreciation wEME 30,905 30,337
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN & 2,100 2,847
Cost of inventories recognised as an EERAEI L ZFERA
expense 9,401 15,254
Employee benefits expenses EERAMXZ 30,388 51,116
Expense relating to short-term leases and  HIZHIFAE KA EHN & X ES
other leases with lease terms ending BEMBRMEERE165%
within 12 months of the date of initial HER&121E A N fE m e H it &
application of HKFRS 16 MR - 990
Impairment loss recognised in respect of: BN TZBEHNERRREERE :
— Property, plant and equipment — W HBEREE 28,992 7,356
— Right-of-use assets —FREEE - 9,200
— Other receivables — H i R AR R 10,500 -
Gross rental income from investment BEMEBLHESBAR D 2T H
properties less negligible outgoings (G AHA)
(included in revenue) (15,695) (23,754)
Hotel management fee BEEIRE 10,308 25,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S NR.EERTHREARTMNS
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year, WRIEEE BB REE DTG E
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong HERNEERTHAHMES W T :

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follow:

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_S-—ZEHF+-—A=+—HIEE
Directors’ Salaries and Retirement
fees other benefits benefits Total
HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$°000
HeR
EEHSE Hu@F EBARER wst
FHERT FHERT FHET FHET
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (note h) R 0E £ 5 A (i EER) 24 - - 24
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah** (note a) BT ELE (M tFa) - 1,800 18 1,818
Mr. Liu Hao (note f) B7% 55 4 (B 5EF) 43 - - 43
Dr. Yap, Allan (note g) R BT (ag) 72 - - 72
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic (note b) & & 4 4 (M 7Eb) 234 - - 234
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny F 8B A 5 A (P aEC)

(note ¢) 780 - - 780
Sub-total NEE 1,153 1,800 18 2,971
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their BT EENES AN ESHEER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the NEIRKRER 7 BHEAIRE 2R -

Company and the Group.

Directors’ Salaries and Retirement
fees other benefits benefits Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥FER
Exne HiE R BKEF st
FTHT FHT FET FTHT
Independent non-executive BUENITES
directors
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva MEIkE 110 - - 110
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B B o A 153 - - 153
Mr. Sin Chi Fai BB R & 87 - - 87
Sub-total INEE 350 - - 350
The independent non-executive directors’” emoluments shown B IERITEESME BN REY
above were for their services as directors of the Company. ERRREBAMIRBEZ R -
HK$'000
FTHT
Total BEt 3,321

REBBRENEZERER QT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NR.ESERITHREZEMNE @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—-hF+-A=+—HLEFE
Directors’ Salaries and Retirement
fees other benefits benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hek
E=He H g F) ERAEF @t
FHET FHET FH&ET F&T
Executive directors WITES
Dr. Yap, Allan (note g) ZEREE L (KHiEg) 120 = = 120
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah** (note a) BT E L L (M sEa) - 914 11 925
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic (note b) & % %t 4 (Mf7Eb) 139 - - 139
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny F 8EAK St A (M 5Ec)

(note ) 337 - - 337
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva* (note d)  PR¥%Zz4* (Ffi5Ed) - 1,699 8 1,707
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis PR & #£ %t 4 (HiiTe)

(note e) - - - -
Sub-total NEE 596 2,613 19 3,228
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FAHTESHES AR ESEREEAR
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the RAIRANEE 2 FHRMHE 2 R

Company and the Group.

Directors’ Salaries and Retirement
fees  other benefits benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek
EEHE H fth 48 Fl BKER Bt
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Independent non-executive BIEMITES
directors
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva R EE 100 - - 100
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7 B B 5 A 140 - - 140
Mr. Sin Chi Fai MBS A 80 - - 80
Sub-total INEF 320 - - 320
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above LB ERTESME DEANES D
were for their services as directors of the Company. EARATEEFISMHE Y RS o
HK$’000
FET
Total #Et 3,548
1 52 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:
(@) Appointed with effect from 31 May 2019.

(b) Appointed with effect from 12 August 2019, and resigned with
effect from 25 August 2020.

(c) Appointed with effect from 20 September 2019, and resigned
with effect from 25 August 2020.

(d) Retired with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2019.

(e) Resigned with effect from 12 August 2019
(f)  Appointed with effect from 24 August 2020.
(g) Resigned with effect from 7 August 2020.
(h)  Appointed with effect from 19 October 2020.

* Ms. Chan Ling, Eva was also the chief executive of the Company
till 30 May 2019 and her emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by her as the chief executive.

**  Mr. Lai Tsz Wah is also the chief executive of the Company from
31 May 2019 and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the former executive
directors, Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic and Mr. Wong Kui Shing,
Danny, agreed to waive their emoluments of HK$187,000
and HK$516,000, respectively (2019: Nil). There was no other
arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office as a director in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group for

years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

12.EE K17

BB E

(@ RIZB-NFHEA=T—BRLEZRE-

by R-E-—NFNAT+-_HEERE:
L/{&fyf—‘,i)\ﬁ THHREHE -

(0 RZEBE-NFAA-_TBREZRE:
AR —FB-ZBFEN\A - +HBEEE -

d) RARBAR-_ZF-NAFRA=1H
BRI ZBRBFREERFRME -

() RZE-—NFNA+T_BEHIE-

) MN-E_ZEFNA_THABERE-

(@@ R-ZE_ZF/\HLBEEE-

(hy R-ZBE-_TF+ATNBRERE-

* BRELXEITRARBATBREH H
ECT-AFRAA=tTHI - MH
REXFBEE M BREEER/TT
BAESRERBZME -

* BFELELEB_ZT-NAFAHA
=t —HBETRAARBTHREAR

MEREXAEEZ2ME B EE
RITRBBRHEREZME

F”>

RNBE_ZE_TF+_A=+—HILHF
CAITESRER A RFEKTE
FEMREREZME 5 5 &187,0007%
7T }%516,0008 T (Z T — L5 : &) °
HE-_TZ-_ZTFR-_FT—ALE+=A
ST HLEFEABEEEREXRE
METAME 2 HA T o

><1¢

REE_FT_FFE_F-NAF+=-A
=St BLEFE AREYEREEAR
SEEMKE AR FEBMAEMNEST
MEABEERMAEINAREEZ &
ZRE R RRR 2 fEE -

7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES B.AUESHMA L
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FAXREERRUESHMALTEE —F
included one director (2019: two directors), details of whose BF (T NF -WMEESR)  EP&
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the HEER EXHEI2 FepmE (ZF
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019: three) —NE ZR)RFEEFMIEARQFT
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief BBz saTEE 2 FANTMFRE
executive of the Company are as follows: W
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-®F B
FERT FET
Salaries and other benefits e R H fth g A 2,985 2,619
Retirement benefits RRAEF 72 54
3,057 2,673
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the WEBATHBEZWIHFARAERTZ &
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the S EE ASAT

following bands is as follows:

2020 2019

Number of Number of

employee employee

—g-%% —E—h#

EEAH EEAE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1 1

4 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to these individuals as an RREFE  RNEBEWERERREE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ERKERRIEBHMAZEALTINE
for loss of any office in connection with the management of the S ERIMASMARER 2182 52

affairs of any member of the Group for both years. B IERBEER 2 E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —T—NF
FHERT FHET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the R AFTANDIKZ ARQE LB
Company recognised as distribution RERE
during the year:
2019 Special dividend — HK$2.5 cents ZE-NEFRKRE—F&R2.51
(2019: 2018 Special dividend HK$ Nil) BE(CE-NF: ZF-N\F
per share BRI EZ BT 19,730 -

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: a special
dividend of HK$19,730,000) nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period.

15.LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing operations and discontinued
operation

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

ARRESFTEBZREHE_ZT_F
F+ZA=+—BLEFENRE(ZE
—NF - R B 19,730,000 L) -
B R 5 B4 R & I BRI AR S ©

RE1E
HEEEERRORI SR
%
ARTEG A TREA R B
YR TR EH 5 ¢

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-%% B
FTERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners RIEFTEEREARBEERZ
of the Company for the purpose of RRABEE AEGFEANERE
calculating basic and diluted loss per share 71,648 95,435
Number of shares g ==
2020 2019
—e-%% —T-nF
Weighted average number of ordinary REFTEEREARBEERZ
shares for the purpose of calculating T@RINETHEE
basic and diluted loss per share 789,211,046 789,211,046

The computation of diluted loss per share for years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options since their assumed exercise would

result in decrease in loss per share.

HEBE—_T_TFER-_FT-NAF+
A=+ HLEFEZz2ER&EFHERT
BRETEARRZERE  RAZR
RITEBRESESEHTRERRD -

REBBRENEZERER QT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

15.LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the
year from the continuing operations attributable to owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

15. BREE @)
BEKEER

ARBEBABEFHEREEHZER
EARAREGEIRTRTIIBIRTE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
et Sk - -3 —E—AF
FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners KANRHEE AEGLERNER
of the Company 71,648 95,435
Less: A
Loss for the year attributable to owners B4R || 4R 238 > RN
of the Company from discontinued ;;Eﬁ}\gg{gﬁpq;gﬁg
operations (14,208) (30,150)
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic RIETERBELEEB 2SR
and diluted loss per share from BEARREEEE 2 EE
continuing operations 57,440 65,285

The denominators used are the number of shares as those

detailed above for basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2020, basic and diluted loss
per share for the discontinued operation attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$0.02 (2019: HK$0.04) per share,
based on the loss for the year from discontinued operation
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$14,208,000 (2019:
HK$30,150,000) and the number of shares detailed above for the

calculation of both basic and diluted loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 - B RFE

Office

Furniture equipment

Hotel Leasehold and Motor and
properties  improvements fixtures  Vehicles machinery Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

nE & BAERE
EENE MEEE REE RE R /it
TAT TAT TAT TAT FAT TAT

COST B

At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-n&—A—H 448,743 113,086 15,205 1,523 3,603 582,160
Additions RE - 65 411 = = 476
Disposals HE - - (314) = ) (322)
Exchange adjustments R AR (10,733) (1,783) (270) 1) (51)  (12,858)
At 31 December 2019 A\ZE-NE+ZRA=1+—A 438,010 111,368 15,032 1,502 3,544 569,456
Additions NE - - 213 - - 213
Disposals HE - - (270) (292) - (562)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BARELE - (390) (1,329) - - (1,719
Exchange adjustments R 35,442 5,885 899 70 169 42,465
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZEF+-A=1—H 473,452 116,863 14,545 1,280 3,713 609,853

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ HERHE

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H 170,261 100,903 11,339 781 2,642 285,926
Provided for the year REREE 26,102 1,903 1,422 250 143 29,820
Impairment loss recognised in REETRR 2R EER

profit or loss 6,927 429 - - - 7,356
Eliminated on disposals T E B - = (293) = = (293)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% (5,446) (1,597) (218) (17) 36)  (7,314)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE-hA&F+=-A=+—H 197,844 101,638 12,250 1,014 2,749 315,495
Provided for the year KEERME 26,362 1,537 1,035 196 130 29,260
Reclassified as held for sale ENPBEARBELE = (390) (1,329) = - (1,719
Impairment loss recognised in IR P R 2R EER

profit or loss 27,542 1,450 - - - 28992
Eliminated on disposals & B B - - (270) (160) = (430)
Exchange adjustments B X A% 19,902 5,402 766 62 127 26,259
At 31 December 2020 A\ZE-TE+-R=1+—-A 271,650 109,637 12,452 1,112 3,006 397,857
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z5+-A=t-H 201,802 7,226 2,093 168 707 211,996
At 31 December 2019 R=E-h&F+=-A=+—H 240,166 9,730 2,782 488 795 253,961
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Hotel properties Over the shorter of the term of
(comprising land and lease of land use rights, or the
buildings) remaining co-operative periods
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 5 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 8'/,% to 20%
Office equipment and 20%
machinery
Notes:

(a)

Included in the hotel properties is a hotel property with a
carrying value of HK$105,215,000 (2019: HK$107,764,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,322,000 (2019:
HK$6,322,000) located in Guangzhou (“Rosedale Guangzhou
Hotel”). The Group holds the land use rights and property right
of the hotel property for a term expiring in January 2037, under
the name of Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale
Guangzhou").

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement (the “Co-operative
Agreement”) entered into between Allied Glory Investment
Limited (“Allied Glory”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the minority shareholder (the
"PRC Partner”) of Rosedale Guangzhou, the co-operative period
for Rosedale Guangzhou is 50 years commencing from 15
January 1987.

Rosedale Guangzhou is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture incorporated in the PRC and its major asset is Rosedale
Guangzhou Hotel, which it owns and operates. The land use
and property rights of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel would be
transferred to the PRC Partner upon the completion of the
co-operative period. Pursuant to the approval issued by the
Foreign Economic and Trade Commission, Rosedale Guangzhou
was granted an initial co-operative period of 30 years and such
approval also stated that, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, the co-operative period could be extended for a
further period of time but not more than 20 years. Rosedale
Guangzhou was then granted a business licence with a period
of 30 years which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry of
the business licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with
Allied Glory to jointly apply for the extension of the business
licence to 15 January 2037.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Allied Glory, therefore, on 8 July 2016 applied to the China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (the
"CIETAC”) for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”) to
reinstate the co-operative period of Rosedale Guangzhou to
50 years and the PRC Partner to cooperate with Allied Glory to
jointly apply to relevant government authorities to extend the
business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou for a further period of
20 years.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received the Arbitral Award issued
by the CIETAC pursuant to which the co-operative period for
Rosedale Guangzhou under the Co-operative Agreement shall
be extended until 15 January 2027 and the PRC Partner shall
provide all necessary assistance to Rosedale Guangzhou in the
application process for extending its business licence.

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration.
The PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to
cooperate with Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied
Glory then submitted an application to Guangzhou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Intermediate Court”) for enforcement
of the Arbitral Award and the application was accepted by
the Intermediate Court in July 2017. The Intermediate Court
directed such application to Guangzhou Haizhu Court which
subsequently issued an execution order (the “Execution Order”)
to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and Information
Technology (BE/MTT/EEKE B T ¥ B &A= 21EB) and Bureau
of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision (BT
HURETSNEEEEEER) on 14 September 2017 enabling
Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence. On 30
November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended due to the
fact that, based on the reply from the Bureau of Guangzhou
Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision, the unilateral
application for the extension of the business licence could not
be proceeded as it is subject to further re-submission with
relevant extension documents.

On 18 July 2019, the business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou
which expired on 15 January 2017 was renewed and the
operating period of Rosedale Guangzhou was extended to 15
January 2027.

Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel
property with a carrying value of HK$96,587,000 (2019:
HK$132,402,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$34,469,000 (2019: HK$6,927,000), situated in Shenyang.
The Group holds the land use rights and property right of the
hotel property for a term expiring on 28 April 2046.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group incurred operating losses in its hotel operations
segment in the PRC, and there were certain adverse changes
in the market and economic environment in particular the
effect from COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC in which the hotel
operations of the Group are located.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs of the hotel operations in
the PRC have been determined based on value-in-use calculations
with the assistance of Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected to the Group. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management of the Group with reference to past
performance and expectation for future environment covering
a five-years (2019: five-years) period for Guangzhou and a
eleven-years (2019: seven-years) period for Shenyang with pre-tax
discount rates of 20.52% and 11.44% as at 31 December 2020
(2019: 18.31% and 9.87%). A eleven-years financial budget is
used in the cash flow projections for Shenyang by management in
the current year so as to fully utilise the unused tax losses during
the forecast period. The annual growth rates for Guangzhou and
Shenyang are 2% and 5% respectively (2019: 2% and 5%), as
based on the industry growth forecasts which does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the relevant industry.
The cash flows beyond the period covered in the cash flow
projections are extrapolated using a 2% (2019: 2%) growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use calculated is
the estimated gross margin, which is determined based on the
hotels” CGUs’ past performance and management expectations
for the market development. The above key assumptions takes
into consideration higher degree of estimate uncertainties in
the current year subject to how the COVID-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve.

From the above assessment on each hotel operation located
in the PRC, the recoverable amount of the CGU of the
hotel operation in Shenyang is estimated to be less than the
carrying amount by HK$28,992,000. An impairment loss of
HK$28,992,000 (2019: HK$7,356,000) is recognised on the
hotel operations in Shenyang accordingly. For hotel operations
in Shenyang, impairment loss is allocated to property, plant
and equipment on a pro-rata basis, of which impairment loss of
HK$27,542,000 (2019: HK$6,927,000) was allocated to the hotel
property in Shenyang.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS 17.EREEE
Leased properties
HK$’000
HEWE
FHERT
Cost R
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 76,575
Additions NE 5,892
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B (18)
At 31 December 2019 RZZBE-NAE+A=+—H 82,449
Expiration of lease contract MEEHDER (77,135)
Exchange adjustments P 5 3 76
At 31 December 2020 RZB_ZF+-_HA=+—H 5,390
Depreciation and impairment loss HERRBESE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—HA—H =
Provide for the year FRNEE 39,506
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss Wi T R REEE 9,200
Exchange adjustments M 5, 38 B (3)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—H 48,703
Provide for the year FREE 31,180
Expiration of lease contract HEELER (77,135)
Exchange adjustments PE W 58 & 33
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+-_A=1T—H 2,781
Carrying value IREE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-BF+-A=+—H 2,609
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H 33,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

Total cash outflow for leases HEZHRE R EE
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
leases various offices, warehouses and hotel property for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
one to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is

enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties where its
hotel operations are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately only if the

payments made can be allocated reliably.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
operating loss in its hotel operations segment in Hong Kong, and
there were certain adverse changes in the market and economic
environment in Hong Kong in which the hotel operations of the
Group was located. Accordingly, management had reviewed the
recoverability of the relevant carrying amount as at 31 December
2019 of the CGU represented by the Group’s hotel operation
in Hong Kong and the recoverability of the relevant carrying
amounts of the right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019. The
recoverable amount of the CGU of the hotel operation in Hong
Kong has been determined based on value-in-use calculation.
From the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU of the
hotel operation in Hong Kong of HK$29,379,000 was estimated
to be less than the carrying amount by HK$9,200,000. An
impairment loss of HK$9,200,000 was therefore recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the relevant right-of-use assets for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS (CONTINUED)

On 31 December 2020, the lease on the hotel property in Hong
Kong had been expired. Accordingly the right-of-use assets as
at 31 December 2020 principally represented the lease of office

premise in Hong Kong.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$2,734,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$2,609,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: lease liabilities of HK$43,153,000 and related
right-of-use assets of HK$33,746,000). The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not

be used as security for borrowing purposes.

17.FREEE ®

RZE_TFE+ZA=+—8B REHE
ZBEWEZREBLHR - Bt - R
T TFEF+ A=+ BZEAEER
ETERRNEBZIRAZYEZEE -

HE R RAL

oy RZFE_TF+_A=+—8"
5t 46 BA {2 A 7 & E2,609,0007% 7T B 7R
A& A 152,734,000 70 (ZF —N4F -
T & & (543,153,000 7T K #8 B8 FA 42
& EE33,746,000%8 L) - HE R T &
MEMEMRY  RELEERHBAALE
BRBHERBRINc HEEETA AE
EERMEHRSR -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REM=
HK$'000
FHERT
Fair value AEEE
At 1 January 2019 RZFE—-—NF—H—H 130,000
Exchange adjustments PE o A% (2,257)
Net decrease in fair value recognised RIBHSER A EERDFE
in profit or loss (37,743)
At 31 December 2019 —h&E+-RB=+—8 90,000
Exchange adjustments PE 5 B 2,342
Net decrease in fair value recognised RiE=ERZ AT EBERDFRE
in profit or loss (37,342)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZF+=-A=+-—H 55,000

REBBRENEZERER QT
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s investment properties represent a completed
complex for commercial use in the PRC. The Group holds the
property interest under operating lease to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Accordingly, the property interest held
under operating lease is measured using the fair value model and

is classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates by Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not

connected to the Group.

The fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was determined
based on the income capitalisation approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. There has been no change from the valuation

approach used in the prior year.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

18. REW = )

RS EENEZ AT EES RS

EZBARRERBRET

Relationship of

Fair Value Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs
hierarchy Fair value approach inputs Significant inputs to fair value
ELRRRABEH
AVFEEER ATEE &1ET & ELBRERARE EZRAYE AVEEZHE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZBIBF  —TNF
FHER FHT
Level 3 55,000 90,000 Income Monthly market rent Ranged from RMB113 An increase in the market
capitalisation taking into account the to RMB470 per rent used would result
differences in location, square metre per in an increase in fair
and individual factors, month (2019: value, and vice versa.
such as frontage and RMB100 to RMB700)
size, between the
comparables and the
property
E=H BRERXMLE BAMSHEE (EHRT NFEAGTARAR FATSHESEM:
pEmEEyE A BIB3TEARKE0  2ERATLEEEM
B REREZ (fmFA T(ZE-NE: A RZ A
ARARN)ZE) RE#100TZEARS
7007T)

Capitalisation rates'
taking into account the
capitalisation of rental
income potential,
nature of the property,
and prevailing market
condition

BRI E (it R ek
ABFEARD M
MERERRITTR)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hierarchy

during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Note 1:

The capitalisation rate used in the estimation of fair value of the
properties principally represented the property yield rate as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Discount rate derived from comparable
entities and risk-free rate etc.)

9.26% (2019: 15.0%)

9.26% (ZF—NF:
15.0%)
BE=
=t+—HALFE
BEERZE=R
BsET

An increase in the
capitalisation rate used
would result in an
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

FrREAEREM:
SEHATFEERD
RZTR -

F_FER_F-NFE+_A
ARIZ:EYNEE I /NS

HEMELATEEAAZERMEEEER
KRZZEZTFT_RA=+—BZWEK
HE(ZE-NF EBTETLERERZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 17 &
Inventories represent food and beverage, consumables and other FEERBER—REEBEFHAE
goods of hotel which are to be utilised in the ordinary course of B BEMREME R RKADE -

operations and are carried at cost.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. B 5 Kk H A FEUR BR X
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —E—hF
FHERT FH&T
Trade receivables B 5 rEWIRR
— contracts with customers — HEEFEH 1,140 2,644
— operating lease receivables — KR EEWGRIE 242 426
1,382 3,070
Other receivables H th i U BR 3k 42,125 30,558
Less: Impairment losses recognised W FRERZ R EEE
for the year (10,500) -
31,625 30,558
Rental and utility deposits HERKERS 1,250 21,025
Prepayments and other deposits AR RIBEREMES 1,831 1,847
Total trade and other receivables B R EAMBEIRKERE 36,088 56,500
166 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented

based on the invoice dates.

H fth B U BR X ()

NTARESEWERFIZEZAHEN 2
BRER DA o

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-ZF —T-NF

FTERT FHET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 1,063 2,673
31 - 60 days 31260H 272 184
61 — 90 days 61290H 43 68
Over 90 days im0 H 4 145
1,382 3,070

The Group generally grants credit period up to 30 days to its

customers upon issuance of invoice.

At 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$319,000 (2019: HK$397,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$4,000
(2019: HK$145,000) has been past due 90 days or more and
is not considered as in default since the Group has reasonable

information to support the amounts are fully recoverable.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

are set out in note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

AEB-—BATRPERABRHHE
30H 2 BRERHEH -

RZZEZTF+_A=+—H &%
BB SRNEREHRPEREAE
319,000 7T (=T — A 4F : 397,000
BIT) ZEWERR - ZEE P EMER
REHBHE B - ZSFA ML KT -
4,000 7T (ZZ — L5 : 145,000/ 7T)
E@H0R A £ B BMWIE BE
W REARRNEEEARERIRHZSE
B AR B S E -

B 5 K E M R R 2R E T F I
RER A M ISR M EE34(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

21.INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 21. FEEERE
Financial assets mandatorily measured as FVTPL: BHERAEBREATEEFEZERE
=
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NF
FHERT FHET
Listed securities held for trading: HEEE LMES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZBRAES 116 189
22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22. RITHBRREAE
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from HR1T 45 ERIR T 35 F A 0.01% E2.02%
0.01% t0 2.02% (2019: 0.01% to 2.41%) per annum. (ZE—NF :0.01%E2.41%):T 8 °
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out in RITHERBEN G2 FBEH NGS5
note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements. H|ER M 5E34(b) ©
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E 5 R H At B {F BR X
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEZEF —ZET-NF
FHERT FHET
Trade payable ESEMERX 4,411 5,189
Other payables: Hi BRS¢
Deposit received Bz & 6,870 29,947
Accrued expenses BRI 11,463 11,854
Other tax payables H Ath &~ B 38 556 682
Other payables H At & 1 BR 3K 13,611 34,203
32,500 76,686
36,911 81,875
GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
1 68 Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (conTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

based on the invoice date.

23.ES5 R EME[NRIR @)

B SREMNRFIZEZE IR ZRR D
HranR e

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-ZF —T—NF

FTERT FHET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 1,062 2,507
31 - 60 days 31260H 762 1,388
61 — 90 days 61290H 442 461
Over 90 days im0 H 2,145 833
4,411 5,189

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60

days.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING

The interest-bearing borrowing at 31 December 2020 represents
a borrowing from a financial institution with principal balance
of HK$22,000,000 (2019: Nil), carries fixed interest at 15%
per annum and repayable within one year. The interest-bearing
borrowing is secured by the Group’s interests over certain

subsidiaries.

BEZRIRN TF30H =608 °

24. 7t BB E

R_E-_TZF+-_A=+—HzZitA
BERRAI-—ReMBBELEE K&
%5 #8 7522,000,0008 T (Z T — L5 ¢
/) REMNKIS%TEBEAMNS - A
E—FRER -ZtEEBEEHASEE
AT B R 2 REm R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —ZT —F

FH-A=+—HILFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 5. HERE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NF
FHERT FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ERfEEAE:
Within one year —FR 1,863 40,462
Within a period of more than one year —FUA L ERBEREZ HARA
but not exceeding two years 871 1,836
Within a period of more than two years MEA EBRBBRF 2 HERA
but not exceeding five years - 855
2,734 43,153
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 A A B B E B RUE
12 months shown under current liabilities (RRBBETIIR) (1,863) (40,462)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  121& 5 14 | B (2 & 218
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBBETIR) 871 2,691
At 31 December 2020, the weighted average incremental RZEZEFTA=1+—8H " H5tE

borrowing rate applied on the calculation of present value of

lease liabilities was 5.63% per annum (2019: 5.63%).

HERBEREMERMMNETFHEEE
EFEAEBF563% (ZFT—NF:

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to

discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in the

leases are not readily determinable. In determining the discounts

rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is readily

observable as the starting point and then applies judgement

and adjusts such observable rate to determine the incremental

borrowing rate.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. 5 A G

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-EF —T—NF

FHERT FHET

Hotel rooms B E R FE 1,645 1,615
Food and Beverage B 385 268
2,030 1,883

At 1 January 2019, contract liability accounted to HK$3,243,000.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised

in relation to the carried-forward contract liabilities.

3,243,000 7T ©

T e

R-ZE-—NLF—H-—B AHAEER

TRIITHERENABEERZHEA

Hotel Food and
rooms beverage
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERE B8R
FET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZEF+=-A=+—H
LEE
Revenue recognised that was included ERRTAFENENBE
in the contract liability balance at the @Rz WA
beginning of the year 157 158
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-h&E+=-A=+—H
LFE
Revenue recognised that was included BRI AFENENBE
in the contract liability balance at the @Rz A
beginning of the year 3,109 134
As at 31 December 2020, the amounts of unsatisfied obligations RZZEZFFF+=_A=+—H BHEE

in relation to the contracts of hotel rooms and food and beverage

are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

ARERR

EEMERGONBANRBTEENE
BIAFHSE— FRERBIA o

HNEZERERAF
20205 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —ZT —F

27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

F4=

A=+—RHIEFE

7. EEBIBRE
UTFARAEERBEFERRLEE
BIEHIE B AR A RH :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

HK$'000

R B I8 3T B

FET

At 1 January 2019 —hE—A—8 33,041

Exchange adjustments PE W, & (701)

Credit to profit or loss (note 9) T A (MEE9) (2,285)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 RZZT—-—NF+= E+— A&

R=F=—FF—H—H 30,055

Exchange adjustments bE 3 & 1,898

Credit to profit or loss (note 9) T A (FEE9) (7,920)

At 31 December 2020 R=-ZB-ZBF+=-A=+—H 24,033

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$617,382,000 (2019:
HK$565,066,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unused tax losses are losses of approximately HK$110,171,000
(2019: HK$102,294,000) with expiry dates as disclosed in the

following table. Other losses maybe carried forward indefinitely.

RBEHERE  REBZRBARB
5 18 4 /5617,382,00008 7T (=T — N
% 1 565,066,000/ 7t) A A EHK 88 K
s A o R AR BE TEET B 18 2 5 FIl 3k
BT ERZSEEEERECEHEE
EoAPDATEEEAFEINMATETE
¥ % ZEEA110,171,0008 T (= F
— L4 102,294,000/ 7T) ° H b 518
AR HA A58 o

2020 2019

HK$000 HK$'000

—E-BF —E—NEF

T FHT

2020 T T4 - 26,649
2021 —EF-— 24,306 24,306
2022 —E=-= 416 416
2023 —EC-=4%F 33,993 33,993
2024 T NF 16,930 16,930
2025 —E_REF 34,526 =
110,171 102,294

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE
27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27 EEHRIEEE (@)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible REERR  AEEEERKREMER
temporary difference in relation to the loss on fair value change TEEZHEBENITNHEREZ5E - A
of investment properties. No deferred tax asset has been R RAIBEEET N E R EZTEA UK
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference HERM A - EUt I B ZE A M
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against ETREZEHEBARLEHIBEE

28.

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 28. 7K N B IR 2R
Number Share
of shares capital
HK$'000
ROBE B A&
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBOIBT L ETRAR
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 2020 RZ=F—A&F—A—-H ZT—AF+=A
=+-Bk=ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid BERTRER
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 2020 R=Z—-HNF—A—-H —ZE—NE+=A
=t-BR-E-ZTE+-fF=1-8 789,211,046 7,892
EER2HEERERAR
20205 3R
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 30 May 2013 which is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last
condition to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject
to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by its

board of directors.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”) to
any eligible employee (including executive directors) and any
non-executive director of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”), any supplier of goods or services to
the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity, any consultant, adviser, manager, officer and
entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity, and any shareholder
or any member of the Group who has contributed to the business
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity (the
“Participant”), as incentives or rewards for their contributions or

potential contribution to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of adoption of the Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company obtains
an approval from shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of refreshment by its
shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and not yet exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed

30% of the issued shares of the Company from time to time.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. LR KRR Z

AAFUBRATEE ZBRE
at &
ARRAR-ZE—=FRAA=+THKMAHT
—RBRERE (58] fFER=
F-=FAz=0 Gr8Zz&K—AK
HEXR AR B TFRERE_F
“=FRNAZBLE EERRRERR
ARELHREZTGRFRILRKRI -

AEEEEARRAMHAREELR
B BEERERMZARR REKEB ARG
((REEDSIAEERERA R 2E
MEE(REAR]) cEWAERE
B(BRATES) MEAFRTES
EMRAEERERNREERREHR—E M
ERB2HER  AEEHEAREER
BZEAEP MAKEHEIMNREER
BIBHMAE FABEIEMMEEZE
MERE - FRA - EE - THRABNE
B UHAREREMNREEBZEBIE
HEBMZAEEBEAMERELEMKE R
ARAEEEFMKEARSEMNREER
BAERTEMES 2 EAREA (28
FEDROBERE (TBRE]D AREX
A B2 BAD VA1 % B2 B 3K ) ¥

BRETE RAQRERE & T
R zBREMPRZBRNDBE - TF
BBRME B AARBEHTREZ
10% ([GTEIFERTE]) @ BRIEARRIE
BRI BB K& L ft o 5 AT £ IR
PREE - R E 2B RERENG
BRRRHEENEBRARRIEETR
MZ10% - BE WL - BIBFFERAD
A A ] L th B AR A R B 95 S T e R AT AR
ZREBRERITERA TEITARA
ZEREBRHBE  TEBBARQ R RE
BEITRMN230% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which Options granted and may be granted to any Participant in
aggregate in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from its shareholders in
general meeting with such Participant and his/her associates (as

defined in the Listing rules) abstaining from voting.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period as the board of directors may in its absolute discretion
determine which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant and subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof and the board of directors may provide restrictions on
the exercise of an Option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant.

At 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 34,000,000 (2019: 55,800,000), representing 4.3%
(2019: 7.1%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

29. U KRR S

ARBUREAEHE 2 BRES

(&)

@

EARBARRBRREBEIRAG ELHE
(FRAZ2EEREBEA(EER LTR
A BARERE) ERTRAETE
MEESEREZBRESRZEETR
BFERITRNDBE  REEFRRLA
HBRLRB)EN+—EARRERG
ATRBBBEARBTERITROZ1% °

Rz BREAR ARG A HEF218
MM EARANUET - BRE
MIRRET B 2GR REZSAERE
BISEE 2 MRARERTE BB
BAGEHREHRERASRF;+F LA
XA B2 RERIEGXREETE AR
MZATEBBRERFIFAARR - TEER
ARAELET B TER (ARS
ERE):(WARABRONREEBERZ
Wi B (NEERRE A AERSH
Bty 2 FHWHE - RS2 B RO R
RO BEHcEE-

R-ZZBE_ZTE+_A=+—0 " 1R
SPEIR B M ARITE 2 B AT R
% 15 /34,000,000 (= Z — N & -
55,800,0000%) " th AR AIRZBZE
BITR5HA3% (ZFE—NF :7.1%) °

REBBREHSERERAR
20205 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 29. LIRRAR 5

(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the KRB UBRARGEE 2 BIREST
Company (CONTINUED) ENC-))
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: EREZSERRIFERAT
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
RHBH FEAH T TEE
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
—E—tFWA=Z+TEH T —tFMNAZ=+MEHA —ET—tFWEA=Z+HEHEE 0.59% T
T FMA=Z+=H
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TERBEEGERSHEENRAEE KRBT
options held by eligible participants during the current and prior FEMFEARBIBIRRE 228
years:
Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed At
1 January during 31 December
2020 the year 2020
R-B-EF R=-B-2fF
—A—H +=ZA=+—H
Categories of participants SHEEER i R AT E FREY i RATHE
Directors 5 9,300,000 (7,800,000) 1,500,000
Employees B8 46,500,000 (14,000,000) 32,500,000
55,800,000 (21,800,000) 34,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the WE AR AT T
reporting period 34,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) — fI#EFHITEE GBT) 0.59 0.59 0.59
Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed At
1 January during 31 December
2019 the year 2019
R=Z—h%F R=ZB—-hfF
—-A-A +=A=+-A
Categories of participants SHEEER i R AT E FREX 12 RATE
Directors £F 19,100,000  (9,800,000) 9,300,000
Employees g8 46,500,000 - 46,500,000
65,600,000 (9,800,000) 55,800,000
Exercisable at the end of the HwEHRATITME
reporting period 55,800,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) — Jn#EF#H174EE (Bx) 0.59 0.59 0.59
76 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make

the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$3,766,000
(2019: HK$5,324,000) represents contributions paid/payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

plans.

0. R RE AT &

AEBRAMETEAERERRILEH
MREDFE - ZAtE 2 EEEAKE
ZEENH NEHAFE  LHfE
ARG cAKRBAREEFEAALZ
5% A &% 5t &)V 5K - B B IRZAE
HRSEBHR -

AEBETEMBRARZEESR/TEK
FERE 2B RKEMNFEKE  %F
M AR BRI AE T BN LRAR
RBEMABET  REANREES - &
SERZRABANFEIE—REZEME
TIE R E 2 5K

B & R 2 X 48 583,766,000/8
7T (ZZF — AL F : 5,324,000 L) FEA
EERTEKORELRAZEFEE
/BB R o

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEKME A A
(@) As referred to in note 10 to the consolidated financial (a) FINERE B EHRERM FT10FTH -
statements, on 26 February 2020, the Group disposed of —E-FEE-A-+XB AEE
the Disposal Group. The net assets of the Disposal Group at OHeElesm. LesEnHe
the date of disposal were as follows: QA E S EMT
HK$'000
Consideration received 2WRE FHT
Cash received in prior years NEFEERR® 23,906
Cash received during the year FABKRS 44,594
68,500
26/2/2020
HK$'000
—B-ZF
—HA=+XH
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REEFENEREEREBN DM :
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment LE R TS 44,307
Inventories FE 646
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H th FE R K 2,887
Bank balance and cash RITHEARRIE S 431
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE - BR 3R (35,483)
Tax payables FE A 1R (51)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHIEBEAE (520)
Net assets disposed of FTEECEESE 12,217
Gain on disposal of a subsidiaries: HE—RBMHEA RNk :
Consideration received B E 68,500
Net assets disposed of ez BEFE (12,217)
Non-controlling interests FEEIR (23,674)
Reclassification of cumulative translation & S S B BT E R
reserve upon disposal of the Disposal Group B EEER
to profit or loss 19,153
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries before taxation & Mf & A 5 &9k 7 A Yk 25 51,762
Less: PRC withholding tax R B TE AR (6,850)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries after taxation i BB A Bl A BR AR 12 W e 44,912
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRESRANFE
Cash consideration received during the year FARIMESKE 44,594
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHEZRITEBRES (431)
44,163

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group also
disposed of Rosedale Oriental Hotel Mgt. Inc. and Rosedale
Hotel Group Limited. The net assets of these subsidiaries at

the date of disposal were as follow:

31. HEM B 2 7 (@)
b) REBZE-—T-—T&HE+-F=+—¢
LEFE - RNEEJE 1 SRosedale
Oriental Hotel Mgt. Inc. &IHEE/A
EEEABERAR - WEHBRAAR

HEBHOEEFEAT :

HK$'000

Net assets disposed of: FIHEzEEFE: FHET

Other receivables H A FE AR 3R 147

Amount due from a related company FE U — R B R R 3RIA 2,804

Bank balances RITH B 126

3,077

Consideration received B E 7,000

Net assets disposed of ez EEFE (3,077)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QRS 3,923
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHELEZRESRAFH:

Cash consideration received during the year FAKE ZESNKE 7,000

Less: Bank balances disposed of W T & 2 RITA R (126)

6,874

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

32.

33.

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

The properties held by the Group which are for rental purposes
have committed lessees for the next one and seven years

respectively.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2. X EHERH
AEEESEEA

REBEBEHERSR ZYWEE D BIRE
R—REFmEMEAEDRE:

SAERKZ RMRBENKNOT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

—e-%% —T-nF

FHERT FHET

Within one year —F A 25,596 19,322
In the second year F_F 22,898 20,345
In the third year F=F 18,661 17,491
In the fourth year F N 17,825 13,493
In the fifth year FRHE 18,201 12,796
After five years RF& 18,738 13,043
121,919 96,490

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share

issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of debt.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

34. €t T B

Categories of financial instruments (a) &R T AE5
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—e-=5 s
FET FHET
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL ERBREAFEEE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BHFEBREEEATEENE
— Held for trading —FHEER 116 189
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKN AT EZERMEE 1,847,594 1,870,729
1,847,710 1,870,918
Financial liabilities SEEE
Amortised cost B SH R AR 27,781 45,156
Lease liabilities HEaRE 2,734 43,153

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, investments held for trading, bank
balances, trade and other payables, interest-bearing
borrowing and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and

effective manner.

(b) MEEBEEBERER

AEBENI2ERTIABEES
REMEKER HIEEERE
RITHEER  BP REMBMERN
AEEEREEREE - 2MIAZ
FHIEREAMERE - BZE 2R
TEEBENRREREDSZERR (B
KRR AR R RN ERR
B) EERREREBDESRAR -
B RN EEZFRE R 2 B R
RIX - AEEEEEEENEE
ZERRR - AR R BB M
TAERELREE

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk

(i)

(if)

Currency risk

Neither subsidiaries of the Company nor the Company
have significant foreign currency sales, purchases or
balances. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to foreign

currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate interest-bearing borrowing
and fixed-rate lease liabilities (see note 24 and 25 for
details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(see note 22 for details). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arises.

Total interest income from financial assets that are

measured at amortised cost is as follows:

34. R T H ()
BEREEEERBE

(b) &

Bt

il

)
/

7% 2%

(1)

(1)

B R

KRB E AR EARDFY
BUNEETERNEELHE
BEEREH Bl A&HE
A 2 IMNE R BR AR -

FIEmR

AEEEEETESEEER
RESHEBBEEANAT
EBEMNERER (FEH20M
F£24%25) o 7 & B 75 [ e 82
EERITEBRAENIR SR
EFEER (FEELME
22) o AER BB I 4 I R
SRR o AT AEEE R
EEZEMERMB - WiHEER
REEREPERFIRRR -

BHBHEKAGEZEREE
PSR S AT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

(Restated)

—E-EHF —ZT-NF

FET FET

(&&:751)

Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKATECEREE 20,133 7,623

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

FVTPL:

34. R T H ()
(M%ﬁﬂ@*ﬁa\&ﬂ%

5 R R ()
(i)  FIEmEE (F)

WIkBBEEAFEE
BzemMABGEZMNERX

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

(Restated)

—e-=5 e

FET FHET

(mE51)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost ZE K AT EZ SR EE 1,762 150
Sensitivity analysis 50 B JE 2T

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis point (2019: 25 basis points) increase
or decrease in non-fixed interest rate bank balances
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2019: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would decrease/
increase by HK$5,033,000 (2019: decrease/increase
by HK$1,906,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its non-fixed

interest rate bank balances.

NTHERES T DREBERSE
HIERE ZMEE R EE -
REDNE  DERENEBE
HRRAEATEZERITA
REFHRITE - EEE
RRITERZ25EEER (= F
—JUEF - 25(EEE) 2 nsk
B THE IR BN R A] B
MR Z A BEEEL 25

e Fl = F3@, T #2518 & 2

T —LF25EER)
mATAE RSB g
A RAEEBE_Z_ZF
+-A=+—BLEEZ
B B A0 B 1B G &R 21N
5,033,000/ 7T (ZZE— 4 :
w18 01,906,000/ TT)
hEFrZREASEEEEE
T R 4R 1T 45 SR P ¥ 2 7 &
[ gz

REBBRENEZERER QT
20205 3
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
management of the Group manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of respective instruments had been 10%
(2019: 10%) higher/lower, the pre-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$12,000 (2019: decrease/increase by HK$19,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of investments held

for trading.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
investments held for trading and bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to

cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’'s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are

summarised as below:

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

The Group applies monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
100% (2019: 81%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2020. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group sets credit limits and credit

approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables individually and/or
based on provision matrix. Trade receivables with balances
which are not significant or not credit impaired are grouped

under a provision matrix, based on past due status.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its hotel operations because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance

with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
two-year observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables were not

significant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. Nevertheless, the Group will keep taking legal action

against the debtors to recover the amount due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable

and supportive forward-looking information.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company assessed a credit-impaired other receivable from
a debtor of HK$10,500,000 (2019: Nil) due to the overdue
of the balance and non repayment. The Group measured
the loss allowance of such credit-impaired debtor using the
lifetime ECL and impairment loss of HK$10,500,000 was
provided during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

Except for the above-mentioned credit-impaired debtor,
the directors of the Company believes that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of remaining amounts since
initial recognition and the Group assessed the ECL for the
remaining other receivables and deposits were insignificant
based on 12m ECL.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks. For the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks
are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit

losses is provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’'s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing
borrowing with repayment on demand clause is included in

the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the

exercise of rights by the lender.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

34. £ T B (&)
(b) K REMEEBZERBEK

ek

(7453)
HEE LR

EBERBECRARE  REBEEE
R#BRe R REFERBERE
BERREHEIKY  RAEEE
BREES  WHERESRERY

2/ 85
-2 A

TRAJIAEEHEBEBEHRT A
HWEMBR - TRBREBEEREELZ
AUMBARERERAEE LR
BRBEZRFAHMMGER - A8
M5 AIARESERIEROE R
EEIAZKENRKRENTE B
ERATHRENOHE -

ZREBEMNERASRERE

Liquidity table BB
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual Total
interest  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flow amount
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
MmEFH RERS ESECE)
Filk:S 1BAR 12388 3fBAZ1E 1255 RERELE AREE
(%) TAR ThET TAT FHT FHT FAT
At31December 2020 R-Z-F%
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables &% R fofEft
EX - 27,781 - - - 27,781 27,781
Interest-bearing FEEE
borrowing 15 23,650 - - - 23,650 22,000
Lease liabilities HEAR 5.63 196 392 1,476 885 2,949 2,734
51,627 392 1,476 885 54,380 52,515
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZE-NE
+ZA=1+-H
Trade and other payables &5 R EffER
R - 45,156 - - - 45,156 45,156
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.63 3,488 6,975 31,39 2,809 44,666 43,153
48,644 6,975 31,394 2,809 89,822 88,309
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the

extent it is available.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that

34. €@t T B ()
(OEMIBECAFEEETE

R BHREMS  AREHD SR
TETRRAFEEE - Bt AF
BER - ANEEF B A TS #

() UBERERLFEE

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis FTEC A ER @ EE
RFIEE
Financial asset Fair value as at Valuation techniques
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE ATEE
ZBIBETZAS+-H —ET-AET-A=T-H AVEEER EESEREABE
TER TET
Investments held for Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
trading in Hong Kong in Hong Kong an active market.
- HK$116,000 - HK$189,000
HIFEBRE B LHRAE S B LTRAE S F—R ERTISEARE
—116,000% T —189,000/ 7

There were no transfers between the different levels of

the fair value hierarchy during the year.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured in amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements which are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis approximate

their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

35. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

FLOWS

TECTFEF_A=+—HILFE

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group

settled the lease liabilities of approximately HK$19,800,000

by offsetting the rental deposits paid.

(b)

financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those

for which cash and cash flows were, or future cash flows

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flow as cash flows from financing activities.

35 EE%IEE/)ILE‘Z

(a) EEHFHEX

BINEH

Z

REBE_Z_ZF+_H=+—H

EFE - AEEA

BEHCNEE

& imaAEHERE%19,800,000

BT o

(b) MEEFBESE

ZEBEYER

TRFVNEMEBDELEZAE

EREEE-

BREASRIFRSE

P-AmMELTHELECAGBLER

ERRERED

B

B KREKRE R
ERAEBZEAHEERE

ROPRBETHREREZAE -

Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 24) (note 25)
EEE HEAE @t
FAn FAn FH
(BtaE24) (Bt &E25)
At 1 January 2019 E—NF—H—H - 74,742 74,742
Financing cash outflows BARE T = (40,913) (40,913)
New leases entered FrEl 3 E - 5,892 5,892
Exchange adjustments I 3, 8 B = (17) (17)
Interest expenses FEmEZ - 3,449 3,449
At 1 January 2020 RZZT=ZTF—H—H = 43,153 43,153
Financing cash outflows EE IR &R = (22,087) (22,087)
Financing cash inflows MERESARA 22,000 - 22,000
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B - 70 70
Interest expenses FEREZ 1,554 1,398 2,952
23,554 22,534 46,088
Non-cash transaction FRERH - (19,800) (19,800)
Other changes: H &g
Other payables Ho4th B BR 3K (1,554) = (1,554)
At 31 December 2020 RZB_THF
+=—A=+—H 22,000 2,734 24,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —E—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group

did not enter into transactions with related parties.

There were no outstanding balances with related parties at the

end of each reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, being the
directors of the Company, during the year is set out in note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.

36.FBEAETRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out as below:

37. A RBIEEWB RAEFIE

BERARRERERBARFER REE
FEZHBARFBEHN T :

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
BRTAR/ KRAHEFZ
WEARER MBI/ BREE ERER Fr e R Ll TEEH
EE B
ZBCBE “Z-AF ZBIBE “ZNF
% % % %
Allied Glory Hong Kong HK$2 - - 73.5 73.5  Investment holding
EES D QAT REARR
Apex Quality Group The British Virgin United States - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited ("Apex”) Islands dollars ("US$")
(the “BVI") 5,548,172
Apex Quality Group EBEARKEE 5,548,172 REER
Limited ([ Apex.) ([RBERR EIA(EHA)
#5l)
HMH China Investments  Bermuda Canadian dollars - - 735 73.5  Investment holding
Limited 1,152,913
HMH China Investments &5 # 1,152,913 RELER
Limited ks
Lucky Million Investments The BVI US$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited
Lucky Million Investments HREB#F RES (E REZRR
Limited
Rosedale Hotel Group  The BVI US$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited
HEEESEERAR XEBARRES E REER
Rosedale Guangzhou* The PRC US$11,500,000 - - 72.7 72.7  Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
BB HE 11,500,000% 7T RAEEEREERE
Rosedale Hotel The BVI US$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel EREARKEE E REZRR

International Limited

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

37. XN A EEN B RARFE @

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
BRTAR/ NG
WEL A% EMAY/ ERESE EMER Fi R LI TEEH
EE Bz
BB “Z-NfF ZBDEF 0 CEONF
% % % %
Rosedale Hotel Hong Kong HK$2 - - 89.4 89.4  Hotel management in
Management Limited Hong Kong
HEREERERAR FE 2B REBBEER
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang The PRC RMB 168,000,000 - - 84.9 84.9  Hotel ownership and
Company Limited** operation in the PRC
EGRBBERRAR" hE ARE WA EBE RS EEE
168,000,0007T
Rosedale Park Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 - - 89.4 89.4  Hotel operation in
Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited &/ 2B REBE2RE
Shenyang Hotel Holdings The BVI Us$100 - - 84.9 84.9  Investment holding
Limited
THBERNERAT RBAARKES 100% 7T REER
Shenyang Limited The BVI US$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Shenyang Limited EBEARKES (E REZR
Success Billion Limited ~ The BVI US$1 - - 100 100 Trading of securities in
Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited ~ RBABARES E REBEEE R
The Rosedale Luxury The PRC S$20,000,000 - - 100 100 Property investment in
Hotel & Suites Ltd.#* the PRC
HEEX(LE) i 20,000,000% 7t R EmERE
vl NG
#  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. fOZMBAR R —RKPBINEIELEDR
Pursuant to the Co-operative Agreement, upon the end of ¥ - BEGELEERE  REEL
the co-operative period, the rights and ownership of Rosedale EHER BMIABGEE 2B R
Guangzhou Hotel will be transferred to the PRC Partner, and BERBEBRZPREBEE ARTE
the remaining net assets are to be distributed to Allied Glory BEFE A IR E80% &20% D Bl &
and the PRC Partner in the ratio of 80% and 20% respectively. ETERRPRABH -
#  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises. " ZEMBARARIIEGEEMRSE -
*  English name for identification only * RN EREMRER
REBRE HEZERERAE

20205 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. R AR EEME A AIFE &)

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

EERRERMIIARB ZME R RS
AEBEZEXBEREERE cEE
RBRAJNEMHBLATZFEETHERE
BRITE °

By 48R
oa

FR BEERNERRBTEAER

S
g °©

BREAFERERZHZE

have material non-controlling interests i AT 2+ 1E
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TRV EEERIEEBRER ZAEEF
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: F2EMBRAIZFHS :

Proportion of
ownership
interests and

Place of Principal voting rights held
incorporation place of by non-controlling (Loss)/profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary [establishment business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERBEREZRRRRS
Ll PEES ARAL/AIkY  ITEENY JEES |idS ARZFERESE 2 (BE) /W 2t ERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“RCRE “E-NF CRCRE “TNF ZBCRE —TNF
TET TEL TR T TER TR
Apex and its subsidiaries The BVI Hong Kong
and the PRC 10.6% 10.6% (11,698) (14,982) 182,804 191,198
Aper R EHBAT ZEEBREE  BART
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (84) (479) - (16,678)
FRIERES 2 {HR)
FEANBAA
(11,782) (15,461) 182,804 174,520

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. R RBREEME A AIFE &)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEARFEREZEZEEE
that have material non-controlling interests NG A= -AC))
(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries Apex R 1B 1 7]
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-%f e
FTER FET
Non-current assets JEMENBE 204,956 276,298
Current assets MENEE 1,324,864 1,344,331
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (26,158) (32,557)
Current liabilities mBEE (39,575) (76,626)
1,464,087 1,511,446
Equity attributable to owners of the RNAFEEB AEGER
Company 1,281,283 1,320,248
Non-controlling interests of Apex ApexIETE Iz 1 151,919 156,540
Non-controlling interests of Apexfff B A 7l 2 IR R 2
Apex’s subsidiaries 30,885 34,658

AEEBEH BERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE —FEF+ - A=+—HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. KRR EEM B A E

EICEC

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

BREAFERERZFEZE
o) INCPA=S €D

(CONTINUED)
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex K B 11 8& 22 7] (&)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EZEF —ZT-NF
FHERT FET
(& E51)
Revenue WA 50,828 110,311
Interest income and other income F B A B E A Uz A 21,631 23,204
Expenses il 2 (119,969) (149,680)
Loss for the year from ERIEEEEB 2 ARFEEE
discontinued operation (15,892) (33,725)
Loss for the year REFEE (63,402) (49,890)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company N2 & & A fE {5 &8 (51,704) (34,908)
Loss attributable to non-controlling Apex3E % I% 1 &5 FE A 5 18
interests of Apex (6,131) (4,139)
Loss attributable to non-controlling Apexfi B 2 7] 2 IEIE R & R L
interests of Apex’s subsidiaries 518 (5,567) (10,843)
Loss for the year REEEE (63,402) (49,890)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AREHEEABEEMEE
attributable to owners of the Company Uz /(%) 12,739 (4,455)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ApexIF 12 R4 o FE 15 Bt 2 1
attributable to non-controlling interests 425, /(5 %)
of Apex 1,510 (528)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) pexHi @ A A JE1E IR #E 2 FE A
attributable to non-controlling interests H\f’ﬂiﬁﬂﬁlf\?&/@ =)
of Apex’s subsidiaries 1,794 (649)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) — AFEH A 2E U (FAX)
for the year 16,043 (5,632)
Total comprehensive expense attributable 7N A A AJE(E 2 HEF S A5
to owners of the Company (38,965) (39,363)
Total comprehensive expense attributable Apex3E#5 i # 25 & 1 2 [ F X 4258
to non-controlling interests of Apex (4,621) (4,667)
Total comprehensive expense attributable ApexHf B A 7] 2 FE %2 i% # %5 fE b
to non-controlling interests of Apex’s HEMZ AR
subsidiaries (3,773) (11,492)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZANF[E 2 HFH X A% (47,359) (55,522)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating &&FFHZHEHE KA (RH) F5E
activities 13,273 (1,358)
Net cash inflow from investing activities & &/E8) 2 3 & i A JF 5 7,194 450
Net cash outflow from financing activities EiE& ES) 2R &7 F5E (40,356) (40,038)
Net cash outflow BentFE (19,889) (40,946)
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 LE =T _ZTHF+_A=+—HIEFE

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the world resulted
in quarantine measures and border restrictions imposed by
governments in different countries which constituted severe
negative impact on the hotel operations of the Group. Even
though the pandemic was alleviating in the PRC, the Group was
not operating at normal capacity for its hotel operations.

The impact of COVID-19 pandemic has been taken into account
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. As
the situation remains uncertain as at the date of authorising these
financial statements, the directors of the Company considered
that COVID-19 pandemic would further constitute adverse impact
to the Group's future performance.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

38. S EHIRE1E

2019BREESHRBERIEE - B
& B IR PR EX B8 B4 R A0 h AR IR I
HASENBEXBEREENAEY
B -BETHENRBBEMEM  BEAE
BB EEBARED ERNEEKTF -

ERBANGRE VB RERFELEE2019
BRREREBOTE - HREARME
WMEREMEBE  BRIDATEE @ &
NAIBEERAE 20198 KBS HRERBH
B SHAREENRRKRBEBEKTFE
a2 o

39. A 1 B 2 B HE AR 5 ] R K e

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY &
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NEF
FHET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE R TN 57 175
Right-of-use assets ERERE 1,934 3,300
Investments in subsidiaries RBAR ZIKE 239,764 239,764
Amount due from subsidiaries =N 1,109,406 1,348,102
1,351,161 1,591,341
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H e YR R & TR AN FRIE 962 1,744
Amount due from subsidiaries =N PO 749,018 509,836
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 525 208
750,505 511,788
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th FE S BR 5K 10,324 5,439
Interest-bearing borrowing AFEEE 22,000 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,409 1,333
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST M B A R 3 IE 481,567 471,522
515,300 478,294
Net current assets RBEEFRE 235,205 33,494
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 1,586,366 1,624,835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HLZE = ZT _TF+-_A=+—HILFE

39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  39. &2 &) 2 B & ik i R 3R &% &
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) & )
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-ZF —T-NF
FERT FET
Non-current liability EREBEE
Lease liabilities HE&E 611 2,020
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,585,755 1,622,815
Capital and reserves EXREHE
Share capital & 2 7,892 7,892
Reserves i 1,577,863 1,614,923
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 1,585,755 1,622,815
Movement of share capital and reserves IR &&= 5
Share-based
Share Special payments Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AP E BRRE URRRFEE it E#R e
THT THT THT THT FTHET
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hF—A—H 1,360,752 658,303 13,715 (474,310) 1,558,460
Profit and total comprehensive N4 G FI & 2 F U5 2 58
income for the year - - - 56,463 56,463
Lapse of share option BB R = = (2,107) 2,107 =
Reduction in share premium  BIE %17 % (B (1,360,752) 1,360,752 = = =
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-nF+=A=t-H - 2,019,055 11,608  (415,740) 1,614,923
Loss and total comprehensive ANFEEERZHER T BHE
expense for the year - - - (17,330) (17,330)
Lapse of share options BERELR = = (4,570) 4,570 =
Dividends (g = = = (19,730) (19,730)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z=-ZF+=-A=+-8 - 2,019,055 7,038  (448,230) 1,577,863
40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. Lt REF
Certain comparative figures are reclassified to conform with ETHREFEEHH»HE  UFELRFE
presentation for the current year. EZ25EH -
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Financial Summary

B FEAEER

RESULTS E 44
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE+-—A=t+-ALEE
—E-EF —T-AF —T-)\F —E—tF —T—XF
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue WA 67,156 215,376 263,011 252,311 242,296
Loss before tax Br BRI & 18 (83,439) (109,498) (65,765)  (127,806) (92,529)
Income tax credit (expense) FrigfiE e () 9 (1,398) 66,188 2,558 (665)
(Loss) profit for the year RNEE (E18) 5= 7 (83,430) (110,896) 423 (125,248) (93,194)
(Loss) profit for the year THALTEIEREE
attributable to: (E518) m A
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (71,648)  (95,435) (3,785) (116,128) (86,438)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A (11,782)  (15,461) 4,208 (9,120) (6,756)
(83,430) (110,896) 423 (125,248) (93,194)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE
At 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R+=—A=+—8H
—E-EF 2 NEFE ZEBE-NEFE ZE—+tF ZT—~F
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Total assets BEERE 2,123,005 2,291,370 2,391,042 2,474,092 2,535,010
Total liabilities BERLHE 107,197 193,378 176,111 226,217 228,487
2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875 2,306,523
Equity attributable to owners ~ ARAAEAB A
of the Company el = 1,833,004 1,923,472 2,024,328 2,056,219 2,114,005
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 42 21 182,804 174,520 190,603 191,656 192,518
2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931 2,247,875 2,306,523

BEBRHERRERAT
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Particulars of Properties

E A0

HOTEL PROPERTIES B JE W) %
Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest
AT 3 3 B AR it 42 T HMEE HEZESH
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Hotel operation 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.7%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou sg.m. sg.m.
No. 348
Jiang Nan Da Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC
BMABEEGRA A & 3 BB R KBRS 10,838.88  46,865.83 72.7%
B N T 770K 75K
IR R
TR KRB 3485
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
ESIHBEERR AR &SI KR TR S 15 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.9%
&G T
& @
36 3R 9955k
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REY =
Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
| 3 31k ARz HH
The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Leased out Leasehold with a term expiring on

Hotel & Suites Ltd.*

HEEX(LB)BRAR

Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC

R EET
X LU & 19005%

English name for identification only

XA B EHER
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